Annual Report &
2017/2018

Mobicon Group Limited
BAEWMEEA R A
(B0 i 9% Stock Code:1213)

()t
AREME
C

:
aringcompany
Awarded by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service

Enterprising - Pragmatic - Aspiring A AR ET



CONTENTS H $%

2 Corporate Information NAEIER

4 Group Structure SEZEE

5  Financial Highlights MBRHE

7  CEQ's Statement THBEBE

11 Management Discussion and Analysis SEERE ISR
16 Directors’ and Senior Management's Profile BEELEREEEBN
21 Corporate Governance Report TEERMES
32 Report of the Directors EFgmE

43 Independent Auditors’ Report B AZ BRI
50 Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss maBmx

51 Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income rEEEmREEK
52 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position e MBI E
54 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity IREEREEER
56 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows melleng

58 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements R MRS R R M5

135 Financial Summary B E




02

Corporate Information

NN

Board of Directors
Executive Directors
Hung Kim Fung, Measure (Chairman)

Yeung Man Yi, Beryl (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Hung Ying Fung
Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Charles E. Chapman
Leung Wai Cheung
Ku Wing Hong, Eric

Audit Committee
Leung Wai Cheung (Chairman)
Charles E. Chapman

Ku Wing Hong, Eric

Remuneration Committee
Leung Wai Cheung (Chairman)

Yeung Man Yi, Beryl

Ku Wing Hong, Eric

Nomination Committee
Hung Kim Fung, Measure (Chairman)
Charles E. Chapman

Leung Wai Cheung

Registered Office
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

Principal Place of Business
7/F New Trend Centre

704 Prince Edward Road East

San Po Kong

Kowloon

Hong Kong

Company Secretary
Ho Siu Wan

(resigned on 1st October 2017)
Tsoi Ho Yin

(appointed on 1st October 2017)

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2018

G

AT

$81% (ER)
CECIEEIE S o))
P -

BER

BT HEE
Charles E. Chapman
RIERE
HAKER

HHRERY
2R (ERE)
Charles E. Chapman
HAKER

HMZEE
REF(EH)
BeE

ERY

RAHEZHE
HRlE(EF)
Charles E. Chapman

R

w1 3 o B
Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

F B
BB
BE
¥
K F B R T0455
R TEmERLIE

T tE+A—RHE)

(R=F—tF+A—BEZE)



Corporate Information

A EIER

Auditors

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

31/F Gloucester Tower

The Landmark

11 Pedder Street, Central

Hong Kong

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Office
MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited

The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HM08

Bermuda

Branch Share Registrar and Transfer Office
Hong Kong Registrars Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17/F

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

0CBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

United Overseas Bank Limited

Legal Advisers
F. Zimmern & Co.

Rooms 1002-1003, 10/F
York House

The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

Corporate Website

http://www.mobicon.com

Investor Relations Contact
Telephone no: (852) 2397 6628
Facsimile no: (852) 2397 0339

Stock Code
1213

A B i
RERHIEBHERAT
EBPEEHE

&

RIRETHIB

B E
EEHITAEN TR

B3 4/ LRk T
MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO08

Bermuda

JBE 4y 38 )5 6 R a0 R
ERBEHFERBERAT
B

EEAER1835%
AL
17117121716 %

E R RAT

R EZRRT (M) BB ARAT
AFERITERAT
ERBT(FE)BRAT

1B SRITERAT
EEATRITERAT
RERTERAT

YL Y
MESCREDTT
B
EEREFRIH
B ES

W KE
10#1002-1003=

o i) 48

http://www.mobicon.com

& 5 57 ok 4%
FEESEE ¢ (852) 2397 6628
{EESRE  (852) 2397 0339

Jie A A 5R

1213

BREKEERQE - - N\FFH

03



04

Group Structure

IR

100%

Mobicon (BVI) Limited
(BVI) RBERHE)

Hong Kong aE

Mainland China SPEIAE

Malaysia FEARAEE
Singapore FINR
South Africa 5El
Taiwan ag

* For identification purpose only {E{:571

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2018

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
A Plus Computer Mobicon Holdings Limited Mobicon Mobicon Agent Limited Partners 2 Mobicon Malaysia
el Wit ERAETRUARAT it i ERAREERAS Limited Limited
(BVI) (REEREB) (Hong Kong) (&7&) (BVI) (REEREB) (Hong Kong) (&i#) (BVI) (REEE X3 8) (BVI) CREEE LB B)
| 100%
Mobicon Electronic Trading
(Shenzhen) Limited
BRAEFES(RY)ERAS
(Mainland China) (PEIAPE) 100%
100% 61%
100% Mobicon-Remote
A Plus 2 Mobi Mobicon (Taiwan) Limited Electronic Pte Ltd.
Computer Limited : P awan (Si ) (RTAMSE
—  mEsmmERAm Holdings Limited SRRRBRGERAT nospore) ()
(Hong Kong) (&3&) (BVI) (REELEE) (Taiwan) (&)
100% 100%
Videocom Technology Langa Holdings 70% 100%
| (HK) Limited (Proprietary) Limited
EBBRAT (South Africa) (@3E) Milliard Devices Limited MCU Power Limited
(Hong Kong) (&iE) EAPRTHBERAE REBBERAE
(Hong Kong) (&%) (Hong Kong) (&%)
100% 100%
o e Mantech Electronics
mx"".gi"t"b""‘m I—  (Proprietary) Limited 60% 100%
— AS (South Africa) (R3F)
(sziﬁoﬁg)ﬁ (%1) APower Holdings Limited AESI (HK) Limited
RAREEBRAS) K—FG(EB)BRAE
100% (Hong Kong) (&#) (Hong Kong) (&)
MBM Properties
L (Proprietary) Limited
(South Africa) (FJF)
B Bermuda BRE
BVI REEZHE



Financial Highlights
B

Major Financial Indicators and Ratios
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For the year ended 31st March
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HK$'000
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Operating results REXE
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Gross profit EF 126,763
Operating (loss)/profit R (E1R), B F (3.388)
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Financial position B Rk
Total assets BERE 297,969
Net assets BESE 168,150
Financial ratio B i e &
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Financial Highlights
A T

For the year ended 31st March == A=+—HILF/E
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CEQO’s Statement
AT AR

Financial Results

For the financial year ended 31st March 2018, the Group recorded a
revenue of around HK$547 million, representing a decrease of about 12.9%
from approximately HK$628 million recorded in the last year. Gross profit
decreased by about 15.3% from approximately HK$150 million in the last
year to around HK$127 million in this year, while the gross profit margin
decreased by approximately 0.7% to around 23.2% from about 23.9%
in the last year. The Group recorded an operating loss of approximately
HK$3.4 million (31st March 2017: profit of approximately HK$9.0 million).
The loss attributable to shareholders was approximately HK$17.1 million
(31st March 2017: approximately HK$3.8 million). This represented loss per
share of around HK$0.086 (loss per share of around HK$0.019 as at 31st
March 2017). The Board has resolved that subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
a final dividend of HK cent 0.5 per ordinary share shall be declared for
the year ended 31st March 2018, totally HK$1 million to the shareholders
whose names appeared on the register of members of the Company on
16th August 2018. The final dividend, if approved, is expected to be paid on
27th August 2018.

During the year under review, the Group continued to focus on its three core
business operations, namely: (1) the distribution of electronic components,
automation parts and equipment under the brand of =% (the “Electronic
Trading Business”); and (2) the Computer Business which includes (i) the
retail sales of computer products and smartphone accessories under the
brand of L VideoCom (4, “Computer Retail Business”) and (ii) the distribution
of computer products and consumer products under the brand of e (the
“Computer Distribution Business”); and (3) the Cosmetic and Online Retail
Business mainly under the brand of W‘is‘hvh!. During the year under review,
the Group's revenue derived from the Electronic Trading Business decreased
approximately 12.0% to about HK$309 million from approximately HK$351
million in the last year. Revenue from the Computer Business was recorded
at about HK$112 million, which represented an increase of approximately
3.7% from about HK$108 million in the last year. Revenue from Cosmetic
and Online Retail Business decreased approximately 25.4% to about HK$126
million from approximately HK$169 million in the last year.
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CEOQO’s Statement
AT AR

For the year ended 31st March 2018, the Group's total operating expenses
were approximately HK$136 million, representing a decrease of about
12.3% (31st March 2017: about HK$155 million), among which the
distribution and selling expenses were approximately HK$44 million which
have decreased by approximately 13.7% from HK$51 million recorded in
the last year. During the year under review, the general and administrative
expenses decreased by about 11.5% to around HK$92 million (31st March
2017: about HK$104 million). The Group continued to monitor the overall
headcount. As at 31st March 2018, the headcount for the Electronic
Trading Business decreased from 273 full-time employees last year
by about 3.3% to 264 full-time employees while the headcount for the
Computer Business decreased from 58 full-time employees last year by
about 1.7% to 57 full-time employees and the headcount for Cosmetic and
Online Retail Business decreased from 91 full time employees last year by
about 27.5% to 66 full time employees. Meanwhile, finance cost for the
year under review was more or less the same as last year to approximately
HK$2.5 million.
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CEQO’s Statement
AT AR
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Development Strategy and Outlook

In spite of the accelerated growth of the global economy, there is a
growing concern for the uncertainties caused by the government policy
of the United States of America ("US”). Currently, it is not possible to
predict whether the on-going trade dispute between the US and China will
threaten the global economy seriously. However, the Group will closely
monitor the situation and assess the impact on our business.

The Group believes that while online shopping puts physical stores under
pressure by its increasing popularity, it also offers opportunities. To
respond to the challenges and seize the opportunities, the Group has begun
to change its strategy. The Group will closely monitor the performance of
each of the retail stores. By the end of the next financial year, the number
of retail stores will be further reduced to around 15 or less to optimize the
overall performance. In the first quarter of the financial year 2018/2019,
the Group has closed down 5 retail stores. On the other hand, the Group
will endeavour to grasp the opportunities of online business development.
The Group will continue to maintain a close business relationship with
famous online platforms with a view to expanding its customer base. Also,
we will further increase the human resources in our Online Retail Business
to cope with the rapid development.
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CEOQO’s Statement
ATBAERR

With regard to the Electronic Trading Business, the Group will implement
stringent cost-control measures to maximize overall profitability to the
Group. The cost-control measures include close monitor of its operating
expenditure, regular review of its operating procedures and exploration
of the possibility of departmental restructuring. In addition, the Group
will continue to broaden its customer base in both local and worldwide
markets. During the year under review, the Group’s subsidiary in China
recorded considerable growth in its revenue. We believe that the business
in China will maintain steady growth, which is attributable to the sales
of IC in LED power supply products. Furthermore, upon noticing the
shortages of electronic components, in the first quarter of the financial
year 2018/2019, the Group introduced the Urgent Requirement Services for
delivery of designated electronic components to our customers in a short
period of time. Moreover, to enhance our competitiveness in the South
Africa market, the Group targets to add 500 to 2,000 items sourced from
China to our product base annually.

Regarding the Computer Retail Business, the Group will strive to improve
the competitiveness of the product portfolio including trendy products, life
style products and consumer electronic products etc. Our purchasing team
will continue to source special and unique products in order to outcompete
the fierce market competition. For the traditional wholesale business, the
Group has been introducing new brands and products, among which, the
sales of MEC Powerbar and the computer products under the brand of
“Unitek” are improving steadily with an upward trend.

Appreciation

| ' would like to thank our management team and all our staff members
for their effort and significant contribution to the Group during the past
year. In addition, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our
shareholders, institutional investors, customers, bankers and business
partners for their continuous support to and confidence in the Group.

By Order of the Board
Yeung Man Yi, Beryl
Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26th June 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB ST

Business Review

During the year under review, the Group operated in three core business
operations, namely: (1) the distribution of electronic components, automation
parts and equipment under the brand of M (the “Electronic Trading
Business”); (2) the Computer Business which includes (i) the retail sales of
computer products and smartphone accessories under the brand of VideoCom
(the "Computer Retail Business”) and (ii) the distribution of computer

Distribution Business”); and (3) the Cosmetic and Online Retail Business
mainly under the brand of WiShh!. The Electronic Trading Business, the
Computer Business and the Cosmetic and Online Retail Business accounted
for approximately 56.5%, 20.5% and 23.0% of the Group's total revenue

respectively for the year under review.

By analysis on the three core business operations, the gross profit margin
of the Electronic Trading Business, the Computer Business and the
Cosmetic and Online Retail Business were approximately 22.5%, 17.9%
and 29.6% (31st March 2017: approximately 20.9%, 17.1% and 34.6%)
respectively for the year ended 31st March 2018.

Electronic Trading Business

Electronic Trading Business remained the primary contributor to the
Group's revenue and profits during the year under review and recorded
revenue of approximately HK$309 million as compared with that of
approximately HK$351 million recorded in the last year, representing a
decrease of approximately 12.0%, During the year, a world’s leading toys
retailer in the United States undertook a financial restructuring and filed
for Chapter 11 bankruptcy protect, the toys manufacturers have become
more conservative in their production scale and delayed the launch of
new toy models. As a result, the demand for our electronic components
declined.

During the year under review, the business of the Group’s overseas
subsidiaries recorded a revenue of approximately HK$110 million (for
the year ended 31st March 2017: about HK$104 million), representing an
increase of about 5.8%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B BRI ok i S AT

The Group's South Africa subsidiary recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$78 million, representing an increase of about 1.3% from approximately
HK$77 million in the last year. The slowdown of the South Africa economy
and the strengthening of the South Africa Rand adversely affected the
operating environment. Despite these unfavorable factors, the Group was
able to maintain its market competitive in South Africa and generate stable
revenue. During the year under review, the Group further acquired 10% of
equity interest in its subsidiary in South Africa. It is believed that the Group
will benefit from the additional investment in the long run.

Meanwhile, the Group’s subsidiary in Singapore maintained steady growth
in revenue. It recorded a revenue of approximately HK$21 million (31st
March 2017: approximately HK$19 million), representing an increase of
about 10.5%. It was mainly attributable to the increase of distributorship
from various brands.

Computer Business
Computer Retail Business

For the year ended 31st March 2018, the Computer Retail Business
recorded a revenue of approximately HK$23 million (31st March 2017:
approximately HK$25 million), representing a decrease of about 8.0%.
During the year under review, the Group relocated 2 of the retail shops
to locations where more potential customers can be reached. Revenue
dropped temporarily during the relocation process.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB ST

Computer Distribution Business

The revenue of the Computer Distribution Business recorded an
increase of about 7.2% to approximately HK$89 million (31st March
2017: approximately HK$83 million). The growth was attributable to
the introduction of new brands such as Unitek, which contributed
considerable amount of revenue during the year under review. In addition,
the strengthening of current product range has proven successful. In the
second half of the year, the Group marketed a new model of MEC Powerbar
and gained positive feedback.

Cosmetic and Online Retail Business

The “One-visit-one-week” policy implemented by the Central Government
of China continued to affect the cosmetic retail market adversely. The
number of mainland visitors continued to be low though there are signs of
improvement. In addition, the popularity of online shopping put pressures
on our physical stores retail business. To confront with the challenges,
the Group took optimization approach to close down those loss-making
retail stores and redeploy the resources to Online Business and other profit
making stores. As at 31st March 2018, the number of cosmetic retail stores
was reduced to 26 (31st March 2017: 36 retail stores). During the year
under review, the Cosmetic and Online Retail Business recorded a revenue
of approximately HK$126 million (31st March 2017: approximately HK$169
million), representing a decrease of about 25.4%. Despite the overall
segment revenue decreased, the revenue from Online Retail Business
recorded a considerable growth.

Overall, in terms of geographical segments, the revenue from Hong Kong, the
Asia Pacific region (other than Hong Kong), South Africa, Europe and other
regions accounted for approximately 67.6%, 16.7%, 14.3%, 0.3% and 1.1%
respectively of the Group’s total revenue during the year under review.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31st March 2018, the Group’s cash and bank balances amounted
to approximately HK$28 million and the net current assets were
approximately HK$147 million. As at 31st March 2018, the current ratio
decreased to approximately 2.1 (as at 31st March 2017: approximately
2.2). Out of the Group's cash and bank balances, about 49.4% and 19.6%
were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and US dollars respectively. The
balance of approximately 3.4%, 16.4%, 6.9%, 1.1%, 2.1% and 1.1% of
its total cash and bank balances was denominated in Chinese Renminbi,
South African Rand, Malaysia Ringgit, New Taiwan dollars, Singaporean
dollars and Euro respectively. The Group's total assets amounted to
approximately HK$298 million (as at 31st March 2017: approximately
HK$317 million). Net assets per share amounted to approximately HK$0.84
(as at 31st March 2017: approximately HK$0.91). Dividend and basic loss
per share were approximately HK$0.01 and HK$0.086 respectively (as at
31st March 2017: approximately HK$0.01 and loss per share HK$0.019
respectively).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B B S T

The Group generally finances its operation by internally generated
resources and banking facilities provided by banks in Hong Kong. As at
31st March 2018, the Group had banking facilities for overdrafts, loans
and trade finance from banks totalling approximately HK$153 million (as at
31st March 2017: approximately HK$156 million), with an unused balance
of approximately HK$60 million (as at 31st March 2017: approximately
HK$76 million). The Directors believe that the Group’s existing financial
resources are sufficient to fulfill its current commitments and working
capital requirements.

Capital Structure

As at 31st March 2018, the total borrowings of the Group were
approximately HK$93 million (as at 31st March 2017: approximately
HK$80 million), which were in the form of short-term bank loans (including
short-term loans and trade finance) for financing the daily business
operations and future development plans. The majority of the Group's bank
borrowings as at 31st March 2018 were denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
These short-term loans and trade finance were secured by the Company's
corporate guarantees of around HK$149 million and the leasehold
properties in Singapore (as at 31st March 2017: approximately HK$152
million), with a maturity term of one to four months, and such short-term
loans can be rolled over afterwards at the Group's discretion.

During the year under review, the Group’s borrowings bore interest at rates
ranging from 2.68% to 4.2% per annum (as at 31st March 2017: ranging
from 2.2% to 3.5% per annum).

Gearing Ratio

As at 31st March 2018, the Group’s gross borrowings repayable within one
year, amounted to approximately HK$93 million (as at 31st March 2017:
approximately HK$80 million). After deducting cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$28 million (as at 31st March 2017: approximately
HK$46 million), the Group's net borrowings amounted to approximately
HK$65 million (as at 31st March 2017: approximately HK$34 million). The
total equity as at 31st March 2018 was approximately HK$168 million
(as at 31st March 2017: approximately HK$181 million). Accordingly,
the Group's net gearing ratio, based on net borrowings to total equity,
increased to approximately 38.7% (as at 31st March 2017: approximately
18.8%). The increase of net gearing ratio was mainly due to the increase of
bank borrowings in relation to the increase of working capital required to
support the development of the Cosmetic and Online Retail Business.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB ST

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates

Most of the Group’s transactions were denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
Chinese Renminbi and United States dollars. Given that the exchange rate
of Hong Kong dollars against Chinese Renminbi has been and is likely to
be under control and that the Hong Kong Government's policy of pegging
the Hong Kong dollars to the United States dollars remains in effect, the
Directors consider that the risk facing by the Group on foreign exchange
will remain minimal and no hedging or other alternative measures have
been undertaken by the Group. As at 31st March 2018, the Group had no
significant risk exposure pertaining to foreign exchange contracts, interest
rates, currency swaps, or other financial derivatives.

Charges on Assets

As at 31st March 2018, the properties with carrying value of approximately
HK$10 million have been pledged to secure the general banking facilities
granted to the Group's subsidiary in Singapore.

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31st March 2018, the Group had total outstanding operating
lease commitments of approximately HK$34 million (as at 31st March
2017: approximately HK$61 million). In view of the Group's high level
of liquid funds, it is expected that the Group will be able to fulfill all
these commitments without any difficulty. The Group had no contingent
liabilities as at 31st March 2018.

Employment, Training and Remuneration
Policy

As at 31st March 2018, the Group had a total of 387 full-time employees
inclusive of its staff in Hong Kong and overseas subsidiaries. The Group
has developed its human resources policies and procedures based on the
performance, merits and market conditions. Remuneration packages are
normally reviewed on a regular basis. Apart from salary payments, other
staff benefits include provident fund contributions, medical insurance
coverage and performance-based bonuses (based on the Group's financial
results as well as individual performance).

i 25 7 ) J, B

REBABARZUAETT - ARBRETIIE °
ERNETLHARE ZER—FIWIRA] LB E RS
BE - NMERBBFDAERSTHEETLEHS Y
WE - WESFRE - AEBAZ ZINER 1) E
A T AN SR B A N R B (A R A e sk
EREE BE_ZEZ—/\F=ZF=+—H &K
SEWEAETAEBINESL  FIR - §8is
M E S RITET Az ERRR

B KA

R-B-N\F=ZA=1+—8 REEHEAED
—TFEBTZWEEER - (EAAEBH KK
BAREEZ —RIBITRAZERE -

g R AR AR
RZBE-—NF=ZA=+—0 AEEREEZL
BHOREBEOR= ?@E%}an(ﬁi_v
—+tF=ZA=F+—H:H~FT—EEBL) °
m$$§Zﬁ@§$ﬁ%’ﬁ%$$.ﬁ%%@
METHAEZSAE R \F=A=1+—
A REBEWEEFNKAEE -

D 00~ 35 W0 B2 367 T o

RZZB-N\F=ZA=1t—H AEBEFENE
HSNHBERRIAHREMEEBIES - UHIFER
E IJJZI&FUEJ%TEZ/\ﬁ BRBERIER o

FESBE—REEHRE - RTHF - M8
T & a%?ﬁf@ﬁ%’\ CBEARREEARR

TRAL(REARSEPBEEMERNE T2 RAE
0 °

BREKEERQE - - N\FFH

15



16

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

R AR B T

Executive Directors

Hung Kim Fung, Measure,

aged 57, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is the Chairman of the Company
(the "Chairman”). He obtained an Honorary Doctorate in Business
Administration from Newport University in the United States. Dr. Hung
has more than 37 years of experience in the electronics industry, and is
responsible for the Group's strategic planning and corporate policies. He
is keen on nurturing the second generation to strengthen new business
management.

Since 1995, Dr. Hung has been a member of the Executive Committee of
the Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association Limited (the “"HKEIA") and
was nominated as Honorary Vice-chairman of the HKEIA in 2015.

He was appointed by the City University of Hong Kong as Honorary
Chairman of the Advisory Committee of the Industry Co-operative
Education Centre, and served as a member of the Electronics and
Telecommunications Training Board (2013 — 2019), Information Technology
Training and Development (2015 — 2017) and Innovation and Technology
Training Board (2017 — 2019) of Vocational Training Council.

Yeung Man Yi, Beryl,

aged 56, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is the Deputy Chairman (the “Deputy
Chairman”) and the Chief Executive Officer (the "CEQ”) of the Company.
With more than 37 years of experience in the electronics industry, Ms.
Yeung is responsible for the Group’s finance, administration and internal
control.

In 2004, Ms. Yeung was also made an Associate (Electronics Industry) by
The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong, in recognition of her
professional knowledge in electronics, extensive application of existing
and new technology, achievements and contributions to the industry. In
2006, Ms. Yeung obtained the Master Degree of Business Administration
from Lincoln University in the United States.

In recognition of her valuable experience and knowledge in the electronics
engineering industry, Ms. Yeung was invited to be the Adjunct Professor
in the Department of Electronic Engineering, City University of Hong Kong
(2014-2015) and Advisory Committee (2010—-2014) of Hong Kong Trade
Development Council Electronics / Electrical Appliances Industries. She is
the wife of the Chairman, Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2018
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

R AR B T

Hung Ying Fung,

aged 54, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is an executive director of the Company.
He is responsible for the management and both the computer and cosmetic
retail business development of the Group and has over 32 years of
experience in the electronics industry. In 2001, he was nominated as the
director of the Chamber of Hong Kong Computer Industry Company Limited.
Mr. Hung was nominated as an executive member of the Sham Shui Po
District Commerce and Industrial Liaison Committee (2014-2018). He is the
brother of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure.

Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix,

aged 55, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is an executive director of the Company.
Mr. Yeung is responsible for the management and business development
of the retail business in PRC and Asia Pacific region of the Group. He has
over 34 years of experience in the electronics and computer industry. He is
the brother of Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Charles E. Chapman,

aged 69, Independent Non-executive Director

is an independent non-executive director of the Company. He is currently
the independent non-executive director of AV Concept Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 595) which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and a senior industry consultant for a number of overseas-based trade
fair organizers. He was the executive director of the HKEIA and managing
director of the HKEIA's subsidiary publishing company, the Hong Kong
Electronics Promotions Ltd. from May 1988 to June 2007 when he retired.
Prior to joining HKEIA, Mr. Chapman worked for 12 years as economics
editor at the Hong Kong Trade Development Council and for 8 years as
business editor in a local English-language newspaper.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

R AR B T

Leung Wai Cheung,

aged 53, Independent Non-executive Director

is an independent non-executive director of the Company. Dr. Leung
is a qualified accountant and chartered secretary with over 29 years
of experience in accounting, auditing and financial management. He
graduated from Curtin University with a Bachelor of Commerce Degree
majoring in accounting and subsequently obtained a postgraduate
diploma in corporate administration, a Master degree of Professional
Accounting from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University, a Doctor degree
of Philosophy in Management from the Empresarial University of Costa
Rica, a Doctor degree of Education in Educational Management from
Bulacan State University. He is an associate member of each of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, CPA Australia, the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, the Hong Kong Institute
Secretaries and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England & Wales. Dr. Leung is also an adjunct
lecturer of the Hong Kong University (SPACE).

Ku Wing Hong, Eric,

aged 62, Independent Non-executive Director

is an independent non-executive director of the Company. He obtained an
Honorary Bachelor's Degree in Social Sciences and a Diploma in Education
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1979 and 1985 respectively.
He joined De La Salle Secondary School, NT in 1981 and was appointed
Principal of the School in September 2004. He retired in August 2016 at
the age of 60. Mr. Ku had been the Vice-chairman of the Tai Po & North
District Secondary Schools Area Committee of The Hong Kong Schools
Sports Federation (the “Federation”) and the Chairman in the Federation’s
Tai Po & North District Competition Committee. He had also been the Vice-
Chairman of the North District Secondary School Principals’ Association.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2018
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

R AR B T

Senior Management

Wan Lam Keng,

aged 55, Senior Management

is the senior business manager of the Group. Ms. Wan joined the Group
in June 1988 and has over 30 years of experience in retailing and trading
business. She is responsible for the Group’s Urgent Requirement Service
division. She is the wife of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix.

Tsoi Ho Yin,

aged 33, Senior Management

is the financial controller of the Group and the company secretary of the
Company. He is responsible for the financial management of the Group.
Mr. Tsoi is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. Mr. Tsoi joined the Group in September 2016. He has
more than 9 years of experience in auditing and accounting.

Tsang Ka Man,

aged 49, Senior Management

is the sales and marketing director of Milliard Devices Limited. Mr. Tsang
graduated from the University of Sunderland with a Bachelor (Hons)
Degree in Digital Systems and Electronic Engineering. Before he joined the
Group in September 2001, he worked for a number of integrated circuit,
semiconductors (Brand from Japan, Korea, etc), sensors, radio frequency
and passive components companies as sales and marketing manager.
He is responsible for sales and marketing activities of integrated circuit,
sensors, radio frequency integrated circuit and passive components (i.e.
battery, motor, relay, crystal (oscillator) and inductors etc.) of the Company
in Hong Kong, China, Taiwan and South-East Asia market.

Lam Sun Hung,

aged 49, Senior Management

is the marketing director of APower Holdings Limited. He obtained a
Master of Business Administration from University of Wales (Newport).
He has engaged in the IT industry for more than 32 years and has in depth
understanding on the market trend and market demand. He has earned
rich and solid experiences in the operation of products agentship and
distribution. He has taken part in the industry of environmental protection
and energy conservation and to lead the Group into the environmental
protection market. In recent years, Mr. Lam has explored the import agency
and wholesale business of cosmetic products, supplying the products
mainly to Hong Kong and Macau markets. Mr. Lam joined the Group in April
2002 and is focusing on the development of agent line product and solution
services business.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

R AR B T

Hung Lok Lam, Joyce,

aged 28, Senior Management

is the business development manager of Videocom Technology (HK)
Limited. Ms. Hung joined the Group in August 2011 and is responsible
for overseeing the product development and brand management of wishh!,
and merchandising and marketing wide range of cosmetic products for the
customers of the Group. Ms. Hung holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences
degree in Psychology from The University of Hong Kong. She is the
daughter of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl, the
niece of Mr. Hung Ying Fung and the niece of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix.

Hung Lok Tin,

aged 27, Senior Management

is the business development manager of A Plus 2 Computer Limited. Mr.

Hung joined the Group in January 2013 and is responsible for overseeing

the product development, merchandising and brand management of
VideoCom - Mr. Hung holds a Bachelor of Asia-Pacific Studies degree from

the Australian National University and he was the Patron member of the

HKEIA (2015-2017). He is the son of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and Ms.

Yeung Man Yi, Beryl, the nephew of Mr. Hung Ying Fung and the nephew

of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix.

Chooi Chow Sek, Jasmond,

aged 51, Senior Management

is the general manager of Mobicon-Remote Electronic Sdn. Bhd. in
Malaysia and Mobicon-Remote Electronic Pte Ltd. in Singapore. He
graduated from Federal Institute of Technology in Malaysia with a Diploma
in Electronic Engineering. Mr. Chooi joined the Group in July 2001 and
has over 26 years of experience in distribution of electronic components
and test and measurement instruments. He is currently responsible for the
overall operation of these two companies covering Southeast Asia.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2018
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Corporate Governance Report
EEEIRR &

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board is committed to principles of corporate governance practices
and procedures. The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasize transparency, accountability and independence.

The Company has complied with the Code Provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during the year under review except for the
following deviations:

According to the Code Provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The
independent non-executive directors of the Company (the “INEDs") are not
appointed for specific terms but are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company under Bye-law
111 of the Company's Bye-laws.

Code Provision A.4.2 of the Code provides that every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. However, the Bye-laws of the
Company provides that the Chairman and the Deputy Chairman will not be
subject to retirement by rotation or be taken into account in determining
the number of directors to retire. As continuation of the services of the
Chairman and the Deputy Chairman is a key factor to the successful
implementation of any long term business plan, the Board believes
that present arrangement is most beneficial to the Company and the
shareholders as a whole.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own Securities Dealing Code on terms no
less exacting than the required standard as set out in the Model Code in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Upon specific enquiry by the Company,
all directors have confirmed that they fully complied with the required
standard set out in the Securities Dealing Code throughout the year under
review.

Directors and Officers’ Indemnity

The Company continues to subscribe for an insurance policy to indemnify
the directors and senior management against any losses, claims, damages,
liabilities, expenses and any proceedings brought against them, arising
from the performance of his/her duties as director or senior management
(as the case may be) of the Company. The current policy has been renewed
and shall be under constant review.
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Board of Directors

The Board is collectively responsible for overseeing the management of the
business and affairs of the Group with the objective of enhancing share
value.

The Board comprises a total of seven directors, with four executive
directors, namely Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure (Chairman), Ms. Yeung Man
Yi, Beryl (Deputy Chairman and CEQ), Mr. Hung Ying Fung, and Mr. Yeung
Kwok Leung, Allix and three INEDs, namely, Mr. Charles E. Chapman, Dr.
Leung Wai Cheung and Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric. One of the INEDs has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise, which is required by the Listing Rules. Ms. Yeung
Man Yi, Beryl is the wife of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure. She is also the
sister of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix. Mr. Hung Ying Fung is the brother of
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure.

Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all INEDs meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines.

The Board composition will be reviewed regularly to ensure that it has a
balance of skills, experience and diversity appropriate for the requirements
of the business of the Group. To enhance the standard of corporate
governance, the Company also adopted a board diversity policy on 29th
August 2013. The directors’ biographical information is set out on pages 16
to 20 of this annual report.

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the approval and
monitoring of the Group’s long term and short term investments, business
strategies and annual budgets, evaluating the performance of the Group
and oversight of the management. One of the important roles of the
Chairman is to provide leadership to the Board such that the Board acts
in the best interests of the Group. The Chairman shall ensure that the
Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities, and that all key
and appropriate issues are discussed and approved by the Board before
execution. All directors have been consulted about any matters proposed
for inclusion in the agenda. The Chairman has delegated the responsibility
for drawing up the agenda for each Board meeting to the Company
Secretary. With the support of the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks
to ensure that all directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings and adequate and reliable information is given to the Board in a
timely manner.

The CEO is responsible for the implementation of corporate goals, business
strategies and policies resolved by the Board from time to time. The
CEO assumes full accountability to the Board in respect of the Group's
operations.
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The Company Secretary shall convene a Board meeting at the request of
any one director and 14 days’ notice of Board meeting will be given to all
directors. The Company Secretary shall circulate the Board papers not less
than three days before the Board meeting to enable the directors to clearly
understand and make informed decisions on all matters to be raised,
discussed and resolved at the Board meetings. The Company Secretary
who is also the financial controller of the Group shall attend all regular
Board meetings to advise on corporate governance, statutory compliance,
accounting and financial matters when necessary. The directors shall have
full access to information on the Group and arrangement has been in place
to enable directors to obtain independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary. The Company Secretary shall prepare minutes and keep
records of matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board meetings.

Four regular Board meetings of the year under review were scheduled
in advance at approximately quarterly intervals; the other two Board
meetings had been convened in relation to the discussions of two
continued connected transactions pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The directors can attend meetings in person or by means of a
conference telephone or other communications facilities in accordance
with Bye-law 136 of the Company’s Bye-laws.

The senior management is responsible for the daily operations of the Group
under the leadership of the Board. To this end, the senior management has
to implement, follow up and monitor the business plans, internal control
and corporate governance practices developed by the Board.

Directors’ Training

Every director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company. The Company provides all members of the Board with monthly
updates on the Group’s performance and financial position.

During the year, the Company had arranged an in-house training session
to the directors on the implications of late disclosure of inside information
from recent cases. In addition, the directors had attended external courses,
conferences and luncheons organized by various organisations to further
enhance their capacities to carry out director’s duties.

The directors also reviewed the monthly business and financial
updates and other reading materials provided to them concerning latest
developments in corporate governance practices and relevant legal and
regulatory developments.

NE] 1%%2 BEN-—REFBRAFREFES
& UEREFTECRAHAMARERBESH
Hjé?%i%%llo NRIMEREESERARTRY
RLOZHAIZ LB EEESERD THE
BEEggR LBRE - & &%)&E’]Fﬁﬁ%i‘%
WEH AT RE « FRAKER HAE 2 AR
EERRERNALFEMAESEERRER ?JE‘TE
XER ARET S RMBEERHE
%%“ﬁ%ﬁﬂ’eﬁ’ilﬁﬁﬁéﬂ ﬂﬁ$ TEf’EHj
ﬁ?ﬁti&ﬁi% RABREFERRRSBIEXS

NAWERRESHTE aEﬁFﬁﬁé%Q
E%tﬂ HEIARPAEHIRTE

REBFEZONRESFEERSIHURBEL
B REEFHIT - %ﬁl\ﬁﬁ?A%%AéE%B*ET)%
EARUNEVAERMBRKERERSMAM -
S ERNNETE TN TiﬂiﬁlJ% 36 - i%T%ﬁ%ﬁ
FEE WEBERERNAMBARGBLES

ﬁ:ﬁ%"

SREEEAEESEE TAAAEENATEE
EIE - plith - SREREAEN - REREE
EEgNECEBHE  AERREEERT
e

=
SREFHERFEFEBELARERT - U
RADFNEE - EHEHRBDANER - K2
AEANEFE2 BN B EREEELARYS
SRR BITER -

TR ARBERFEF2EAMEI - BRIE
ﬁJ‘I%@%LEﬁEXW%%%ZaE&*HF@*WU 4
S EERIE 2 MM TR B INTRE -
SRENTES  EEE—PREVITESHRED

ﬁb °©
EENEHNRSEREEEEB MU BBERNE

RAEHMER  AREMBERCEE AT RNAHE
ERMERENERNBEER -

BREKEERQE - - N\FFH

23



24

Corporate Governance Report
R BRI

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

There is no specific term of the appointment of INEDs. However, they are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the provision of the Bye-laws
of the Company. This deviates from the Code Provision A.4.1 of the Code
which requires that non-executive directors be appointed for specific terms
subject to rotation and re-election by shareholders. The Board considers
that this current practice is fair and reasonable and does not intend to
change this practice at the moment.

According to Bye-law 111 of the Company’s Bye-laws, one-third of the
directors for the time being (excluding the Chairman and the Deputy
Chairman of the Board) shall retire from office by rotation at each annual
general meeting. Currently, two directors are subject to retirement by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

According to Bye-law of 117 of the Company’s Bye-laws, the members
may, at any general meeting and by an ordinary resolution, remove a
director at any time before the expiration of his/her period of office
provided that the notice of any such meeting convened for the purpose of
removing a director shall contain a statement of the intention so to do and
be served on such director not less than 14 days before the meeting and at
such meeting, such director shall be entitled to be heard on the motion for
his/her removal.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) on 29th August 2013. The Company recognizes and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. The Board Diversity Policy aimed to set out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board.

In designing the Board's composition, Board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
including:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3. to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

o} to review the Company's compliance with the Code and disclosure
in corporate governance reports.

Remuneration Committee and Directors’
Remuneration

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was established on
20th February 2006 to assist the board of directors of the Company to
oversee the remuneration packages of and determine the remuneration
structure of the executive directors and senior management of the
Group. Its current members are Dr. Leung Wai Cheung, Ms. Yeung Man
Yi, Beryl and Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric. Dr. Leung is the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The terms of reference including the duties of
the Remuneration Committee have been posted on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website.

With effect from the fiscal year 2017/2018, the Remuneration Committee
adopted the management bonus package mechanism of executive directors
which provides that the aggregate amount of management bonuses
payable to all directors in respect of any financial year of the Company
shall not exceed (i) 5% of the net profits of the Group if the net profits
of the Group is HK$3 million or above but is less than HK$6 million; and
(i) 10% of the net profits of the Group if the net profits of the Group
is HK$6 million or above. Furthermore, the Remuneration Committee
also approved to delegate the authority to the Chairman of the Group to
determine the distribution level on the management bonus payout to all
executive directors and each executive director shall entitle to not less
than 10% of the aggregate amount of the management bonuses.
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On 27th February 2018, the Remuneration Committee resolved that the
management bonus package mechanism of executive directors for the
fiscal year 2018/19 shall be maintained at same level as that for the fiscal
year 2017/18.

The following table lists out in bands the remuneration of the executive
directors and senior management whose names appear in the
“Directors” and Senior Management's Profile” section for the year:

M-ZE—NE= ﬂ +tE FMZE g RN
:i—A/ NEMRFERNTESER
mﬂmA%%th%%ﬂmff +& /=%
—N\EHREEHR—KF -

TRIMBI [EEREREREBHNT ]2
TEERERERBNAFEZMEAR :

HK$ Number of persons
BT A
500,001 — 1,000,000 3
1 -500,000 "
Total number of persons 48 A &% 14

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company was established on 28th
March 2012 to lead the process for the appointment of directors of the
Company. Its current members are Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure, Mr.
Charles E. Chapman and Dr. Leung Wai Cheung. Dr. Hung is the Chairman
of the Nomination Committee. The terms of reference including the
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee have been posted on the
Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting. The minutes of the Nomination Committee meeting was tabled to
the Board for noting and for confirmation by the Board where appropriate.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company was established on 18th April 2001
to assist the Board in providing an independent review of the effectiveness
of the financial reporting process, risk management and internal control
system of the Company.

All members of the Audit Committee are the INEDs. One member has
appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and related financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules. None of them is
employed by or otherwise affiliated with former or existing auditors of the
Company. The current members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Charles E.
Chapman, Dr. Leung Wai Cheung and Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric. Dr. Leung is
the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference including the duties of the Audit Committee was
amended on 18th February 2016 and the amended version has been posted
on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange's website.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year under review. The

minutes of the Audit Committee meetings were tabled to the Board for
noting and for action by the Board where appropriate.
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During the meetings held in the year under review, the Audit Committee
had performed the following work:

(i) reviewed annual results and the financial reports for the year
ended 31st March 2017 and the interim results and the financial
reports for the six months ended 30th September 2017;

(i1) reviewed the findings and recommendations of the internal audit
on the operations and performance of the Group;

(iii) reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and ensured the Company to comply with the Listing Rules
and other statutory compliance;

(iv) reviewed the effectiveness of internal control and risk management
systems of the Group;

(v) reviewed the external auditors” management letter and management'’s
response; and

(vi) reviewed and recommended for approval to the Board the 2017/2018
audit scope and auditors’ remuneration.

Attendance of Individual Directors

The attendance of individual directors at the Board, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Annual General
Meetings during the year under review is set out in the table below.
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Number of meeting(s) attended/held in 2017/2018

R-B-+t/-B-N\E

HE/ETEERE
Audit  Remuneration Nomination Annual
Committee Committee Committee General
Board Meetings Meetings Meeting Meeting Meeting
Name of Director EEnE EZg8e EZNZESER FMZESEE REZEEEE RRBEFAE
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure HRlzEL 6/6 N/ANEA N/ATEA 11 11
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl BRERL 6/6 N/AT ”n N/AT R ”
Mr. Hung Ying Fung HHEESE 6/6 N/ATE A /AR N/ANEF n
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix BERLE 6/6 N/ATE A /AR N/ANEF n
Mr. Charles E. Chapman Charles E. ChapmanZt & 6/6 4/4 N/ATER 1N 1
Dr. Leung Wai Cheung ZEHEL 6/6 44 1/1 /1 171
Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric HKRREE 6/6 4/4 1/1 N/ATER 11

BREKEERQE - - N\FFH

27



28

Corporate Governance Report
R BRI

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group.

As at 31st March 2018, the directors were not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Accordingly, the directors have prepared the financial statements of the
Company on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to financial
reporting are set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 43 to 49
of this annual report.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2018
were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office
will expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited be re-appointed as the auditors of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31st March 2018, the remuneration paid to the
Company’s auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, is set out as
follows:

FriZ AR %

Services rendered
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Audit services
Non-audit services — Interim review
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1,028
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems and the review of their effectiveness. Such
systems are designed to identify, analyze, evaluate and mitigate risk
exposures that may impact the continued efficiency and effectiveness of
our operation or prevent it from achieving its business objectives.

The risk management process of the Group is coordinated and facilitated
by our compliance officer. The objectives of risk management are to, inter
alia, enhance the Company’s governance and corporate management
processes as well as to safeguard the Group against unacceptable
levels of risks and losses. The risk management process of the Group
will involve, inter alia, (i) an annual risk identification exercise which
involves assessment of the consequence and likelihood of risks (including
documenting those of potentially high impact) and the development
and/or review of risk management plans for mitigating such risks; (ii)
testing of documented risk management procedures at approval intervals;
and (iii) providing our staff and other stakeholders appropriate and
reasonable access to relevant information and training in the area of risk
management.

Our internal control staff has performed an assessment on our internal
control systems including reviewing guidelines and policies which are
implemented through our operational process and the results of the same
has been reported to the Board. An internal audit function is set up to
examine key issues in relation to the financial and operational matters/
practices and to provide its findings and any recommendations for
improvement to the Audit Committee.

With a view to identifying, handling and disseminating inside information,
procedures have been implemented by the Group to ensure that
unauthorized access and use of information are strictly prohibited.

During the year ended 31st March 2018, the Board, as supported by the
Audit Committee, our compliance officer and internal audit function,
reviewed the risk management and internal control systems, including the
financial, operational and compliance controls, for the mentioned period,
and considered that such systems are effective and adequate. The annual
review also covered the financial reporting and internal audit function and
staff qualifications, experiences and relevant resources in respect thereof.
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Investor Relations and Communications

The Company establishes different communication channels with
shareholders and investors: (i) the annual general meeting provides a
forum for shareholders to raise comments and exchange views with
the Board; (ii) updated company news and published announcements of
the Group are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company; and (iii) different means are opened to the shareholders and
investors for communication channel such as (a) by mail to the Company's
head office at 7/F, New Trend Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road East, San
Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong; (b) by telephone at (852) 2397 6628; or (c)
by fax at (852) 2397 0339.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is a full time employee of the Company and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Company's affairs. The Company Secretary
reports to the Chairman. From time to time, the Company Secretary advises
the Board on governance matters and ensures the board procedures,
applicable law, rules and regulations are followed. During the year under
review, the Company Secretary has confirmed that she has complied with
all the qualifications and training requirements under the Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ Right

(i) Procedures by which shareholders can convene a
Special General Meeting (the “SGM”)
The Board shall, on the requisition in writing of the shareholders of
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company upon
which all calls or other sums then due have been paid, forthwith
proceed to convene a SGM.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board fails to
proceed to convene the SGM, the requisitionists or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all
of them, may themselves convene a SGM, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after three months from the date of the
original deposit.
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(ii) Procedures for putting forward proposals at General
Meetings (the “GM™)
Shareholders can submit a written requisition to move a resolution
at GM. The number of shareholders shall represent not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders having
at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the GM, or who are
no less than 100 shareholders.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied
by a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business
to be dealt with at the GM. It must also be signed by all of
the shareholders concerned and be deposited to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s office in Hong Kong at 7/F, New Trend
Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong not less than six weeks before the GM in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one week before
the GM in case of any other requisition.

The request will be verified with the Company’s Share Registrars
and upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board of Directors to
include the resolution in the agenda for the meeting provided
that the shareholders concerned have deposited a sum of
money reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
serving the notice of the resolution and circulating the statement
submitted by the shareholders concerned in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all the registered shareholders.

(iii) Shareholders’ enquiries
Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns to
the Board in writing with contact information of the requisitionists
and deposited to the Company Secretary at the Company’s office
in Hong Kong at 7/F, New Trend Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road
East, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Constitutional Documents
During the year under review, there has no change in the Company's
Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws.

(ii)

(iii)
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The directors submit their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of Mobicon Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31st March 2018.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the trading and distribution of electronic parts,
components and equipment and computer products and mabile accessories
and trading of beauty products.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by business and
geographical segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Business Review

A fair review of the business of the Group as required pursuant to Schedule
5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), is
set out in the sections “CEQ’s Statement” on pages 7 to 10 and “Business
Review” on pages 11 to 14, of this Annual Report respectively. An analysis
using financial key performance indicators, a discussion of the Group's
environmental policies and performance, and its compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group
as well as an account of the key relationships with its stakeholders are
set out in the sections “Five Year Financial Summary” on pages 135 and
136, “"Revenue and Segment Information” on pages 94 to 99 and “Major
Customers and Suppliers” of this Report of the Directors on page 39
respectively. The above discussions form part of this Directors’ Report.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2018 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 50 and 51 respectively.

The directors declared an interim dividend of HK cent 0.5 per ordinary
share, totalling HK$1 million, which was paid on 19th December 2017.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK cent 0.5 per
ordinary share, totalling HK$1 million for the year ended 31st March 2018.
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o

Closure of Register of Members

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from 3rd August
2018 to 8th August 2018, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be effected. In order to ascertain the right to attend
the annual general meeting, all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company's branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Hong Kong Registrars Limited at its office situated
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 2nd August 2018.
The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from 14th August
2018 to 16th August 2018, during which period no transfer of shares will
be effected, and the final dividend will be paid on 27th August 2018. In
order to qualify for the final dividend, all completed share transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Hong Kong Registrars
Limited at the above address not later than 4:30 p.m. on 13th August 2018.

Share Capital
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Reserves
Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

Donations
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$6,000.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws
and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws in Bermuda.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the
Company’s listed shares during the year ended 31st March 2018.
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Directors
The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors

Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure (Chairman)

Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Hung Ying Fung

Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Charles E. Chapman

Dr. Leung Wai Cheung

Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric

Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix and Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric are required to
retire by rotation under the Company’s bye-laws and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive directors of the Company (except Dr. Hung Kim Fung,
Measure who did not enter into any service contract with the Company)
has entered into a service contract with the Company for an initial fixed
term of three years commencing from 1st April 2001, and will continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors who are proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.
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o

Share Option Scheme

On 8th August 2003, the Company adopted a new share option scheme
(the”New Share Option Scheme”), pursuant to which the eligible persons
may be granted options to subscribe for shares of the Company (the
“Shares”) upon and subject to the terms and conditions of the rules of the
New Share Option Scheme. The New Share Option Scheme is in line with
current Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Since the adoption, no options have been granted under the New Share
Option Scheme up to the date of this report. The New Share Option
Scheme expired on 7th August 2013.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Equity and Debt Securities

As at 31st March 2018, the interests and short positions of each director
and chief executive of the Company and his/her associates in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ")), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as
follows:

(i)  Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company

Jih e i - )

RZZZE=F/\ANB » XRERMH—IAFEK
REET &I ([ #E Rt &1 )) - Bt - ARRARE
BT IR A 2 AR IR L EERRBRT -
REBRETSERALTARBARRDBRN, (15X
) - BREFBTEEERARSMER
AEFEFETRR( ETRAUDETEZRTH
=

ARBHTBIRE BIAK  BEAREAN B
R ULIE MBS - BB BE R
—ZEN\A+AER -

EREEFEELTBAN BB & EB
W o1 Z HE f
RZE—NF=ZA=+—H ARQRGESKE
BITHAB AR EBE A TR AR R REFEH
E(ERRBHFRAEGKO(TES RBEE])
FEXVER) 2 Bfn - RERMD REFF - EALE
RERARBIREBEES R BAEIRIENETE
2ERMzESEAR  HCREBEEHFRBEK
BIEXVERHET R8O E ek 3T AEFETES
R SHNZEFA([1ZEFA]]) BITHEERA R K
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() AR EEB 0. 109 7T Z % M i

Number of shares

R B
Long/short Personal Family Corporate

Name of Director position interests interests interests Percentage
EEpnE "R/ KR B AR RikRER NRER Btk
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure Long = 90,000,000 90,000,000 45%
HElEELT HE (Note a)

(PffzEa)
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl Long S 90,000,000 90,000,000 45%
BREZL ey o) (Note a)

(PizTa)
Mr. Hung Ying Fung Long 26,990,000 S - 13.50%
HERERE A
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix Long = 30,000,000 30,000,000 15%
BERELE e (Note b)
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BREKEERQE - - N\FFH

35



36

Report of the Directors
HHERE

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Equity and Debt Securities (continued)

O

(ii)

R B RATBON B A M A5 %
it 7F Z MELR ()

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company (i) A2 &l & B i 5 0.10 3% 5C =2 3% 38 Bk

(continued) (&)

Notes: BiE

(a) These shares are held by M2B Holding Limited, a company owned as to (a) lttg‘f%@EEMZB Holding Limited3$% * 22
50% by Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and the remaining 50% by his wife, AR =18 T HEH50% « i8Rk T50% 8l
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl. Accordingly, Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and mﬁé%%ﬁi%ﬁi};&ﬁ Eit - BRIFFHE
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl were deemed to be interested in 90,000,000 FREERG - AR EE T RIEREL LT
shares of the Company under SFO. Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and Ms. 4% E 72 90,000,000 A A AR5 F A
Yeung Man Yi, Beryl were in respect of the same interest and duplicated s o AR EH I REGEZTHEZE
each other. SRR S - WEARER

(b) These shares are held by Bestmark Management Limited, a company (b) It 5 % 1 1 Bestmark Management Limited+
owned as to 50% by Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix and the remaining 50% B EARBBREREEHEEGND - M
by his wife, Ms. Wan Lam Keng. Accordingly, Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, BRTS0%B A EZ FEMRBRZ TS °
Allix and Ms. Wan Lam Keng were deemed to be interested in 30,000,000 I BREBEEFRBAE G - HSEREE
shares of the Company under SFO. The interests of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, K2 B MRIB 22+ 445 1 74 30,000,000 X A8 22
Allix and Ms. Wan Lam Keng were in respect of the same interest and AIRNFHEEER - BEREEREMNK
duplicated each other. BRIHEZEETIARIB D EES -

WEHE -
Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1.00 each in a (i)  Ff & 2 & & B A R A 7 ([ # 8
subsidiary — Maxfair Distribution Limited (“Maxfair”) 2 1) 4 JBt 1 1.00 9 T 2 5 4% 5B
8 SE Ji% Y

As at 31st March 2018, each of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure, Ms. fi@ig_)\izﬂ :‘f’_ B AtR=E

Yeung Man Yi, Beryl, Mr. Hung Ying Fung and Mr. Yeung Kwok CBRELL AREELERBER

Leung, Allix has beneficial interests in his/her personal capacity in ﬁix BUEAED BESEAR NII%E

the following number of non-voting deferred shares in Maxfair: ZBERBERREELTRD

Number of
Nature of Long/short non-voting

Name of Director interest position deferred shares Percentage

R EEME Ha/ wE Eﬁﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ B Aotk

Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure Personal Long 300,000 30%

Haleigt A 5=

Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl Personal Long 300,000 30%

BEEL LT & A 5o

Mr. Hung Ying Fung Personal Long 200,000 20%

HEERE A S

Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix Personal Long 200,000 20%

B SE& & A S
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Equity and Debt Securities (continued)

(i)

Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1.00 each in a
subsidiary — Maxfair Distribution Limited (“Maxfair”)
(continued)

Save as disclosed above and other than certain non-beneficial
ordinary shares of the subsidiaries held in bare trust for the Group,
as at 31st March 2018, none of the directors or the chief executive
of the Company had an interest or short position in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFQ) as recorded
in the register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or the
Model Code.

Save as disclosed above and under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme”, at no time during the year, the directors and
the chief executive of the Company (including their spouse and
children under 18 years of age) had any interest in, or had been
granted, or exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares (or
warrants or debentures, if applicable) of the Company and/or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of the SFO).

Save as disclosed above and under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme”, at no time during the year was the Company,
its subsidiaries, its associated companies, its fellow subsidiaries
or its holding company a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors or the chief executive of the Company to hold any
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of the SFO).
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

During the year ended 31st March 2018, the Company had adopted a Code
of Conduct regarding directors’ transactions in securities of the Company
on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model
Code under Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made all reasonable
enquires with the directors of the Company, the Company was of view that
the directors had complied with the said Code of Conduct throughout the
year.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions”
in this report and Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contract of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Interests of Substantial Shareholders and Other
Persons in the Share Capital of the Company

As at 31st March 2018, so far as is known to the directors of the Company,
the following persons (other than a director or the chief executive of the
Company) had an interest or short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

w7 2R o Z BR Sy I
RBEE-ZE—N\EZA=+—HBILFE  AQF
ERMNEMESETARABLFR G ZRTHE
Bl BEERETSE® ETIRAINERI0Z LT
RIS ERIREESR - ERARBIESEL 1)
RBEEHE  ARARRAE  BEERFR—EET
it R spAER o

EHR TR

BARET [BERS | —BRGEEWBRRME
6 FTEESN - NABREAMM B AR BT
ARRESFERARBENEPHREEAES - I
HAEEEXBMEBEKR - ARFHEBRFAE
AEMERZEMEREL

F2 BB R K H At N LR A W AR
b B 2 AR

RZE—NEF=ZA=+—08  BEARRESHHM
o TIAL(TBEARRESHEEZTHA
B)RAREIRG RABRGPHEEREES K
B GBI EEXVER SR 2 )35 2B Z SR A A1 B
BorERAR

Number of shares

R EE
Long/short Beneficial Family
Name position owner interest Percentage
E8 A HR KR BREEAA Rk R Bokt
M2B Holding Limited Long 90,000,000 = 45%
ey} (Note (a))
(KftE(a))
Bestmark Management Limited Long 30,000,000 = 15%
S} (Note (b))
(Kt EE(b)
Ms. Wan Lam Keng Long S 30,000,000 15%
EMEL L+ He (Note (b))
(M=% (b))
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Interests of Substantial Shareholders and Other
Persons in the Share Capital of the Company

(continued)
Notes:
(a) Please refer to Note (a) under the section headed “Directors’” and Chief Executive's

Interests in Equity and Debt Securities”.

(b) Please refer to Note (b) under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's
Interests in Equity and Debt Securities”. The interests of Bestmark Management
Limited and Ms. Wan Lam Keng were in respect of the same interest and duplicated
each other.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2018, according to the register
of interests required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO, there was no person who had any interest or short position in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers
During the year, the Group sold less than 10% of its goods to its five
largest customers.

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the Group's
major suppliers are as follows:

— the largest supplier 8%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate 25%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in these major suppliers or customers.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

Directors’ Interests in a Competing Business
None of the Directors or their respective associates was interested in,
apart from the Group's business, any business which competes or is likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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Report of the Directors
o

Connected Transactions

Certain related party transactions disclosed in Note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements also constituted continuing connected transactions
and connected transactions for the purpose of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details
of such connected transactions are as follows:

Continuing connected transactions

1. The Group occupies the following shops and premises leased from
M-Bar Limited (“M-Bar"). M-Bar is a company beneficially owned
as to 30% by Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure, 30% by Ms. Yeung Man
Yi, Beryl, 20% by Mr. Hung Ying Fung and as to the remaining 20%
by Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix, all of whom being the executive
directors of the Company.

(a) On 30th September 2013, Mobicon Holdings Limited (“MHL"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a new
tenancy agreement with M-Bar to renew the lease agreements in
respect of Private Car Parking Space Nos. 6, 7, 24 and 25 on 3rd
Floor, Private Car Parking Space Nos. 6 and 13 on 4th Floor, Units
1=11 on 7th Floor, Units 1-4 on 8th Floor and Units 1-9 on 23rd
Floor, New Trend Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road East, 104 King
Fuk Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong (collectively, the
“Properties”) for a term of three years from 1st October 2013 to
30th September 2016, of which for the period from 1st October
2013 to 31st January 2014, the aggregate monthly rental of the
new tenancy agreement was of HK$213,000 and for the period
from 1st February 2014 to 30th September 2016, the aggregate
monthly rental of the new tenancy agreement was of HK$222,000.

On 30th September 2016, MHL entered into a new tenancy
agreement with M-Bar to renew the tenancies in respect of
the same premises for a term of three years from 1st October
2016 to 30th September 2019 at an aggregate monthly rental
of HK$234,000. On 1st March 2017, MHL entered into a
supplementary agreement with M-Bar, the monthly rental were
adjusted to HK$117,000 from 1st April 2017 to 31st March 2018.

The leased premises are used as the headquarters of the Group
and ancillary use.
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Report of the Directors
o

Connected Transactions (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

(b) On 30th September 2013, MHL entered into a new tenancy
agreement with M Bar to renew the lease agreement in respect
of Portion of 1st Floor and 3rd Floor, Efficiency House, 35 Tai Yau
Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong for a term of three years
commencing from 1st October 2013 to 30th September 2016, at an
aggregated monthly rental of HK$105,000.

On 30th September 2016, MHL entered into a new tenancy
agreement with M-Bar to renew the tenancies in respect of
the same premises for a term of three years from 1st October
2016 to 30th September 2019 at an aggregate monthly rental
of HK$135,000. On 1st March 2017, MHL entered into a
supplementary agreement with M-Bar, the monthly rental were
adjusted to HK$67,500 from 1st April 2017 to 31st March 2018.

The leased premises are used as storage with ancillary office (in
respect of Portion of 1st Floor) and godown for storage (in respect
of 3rd Floor).

During the year, the Group paid rental expenses amounting to
approximately HK$2,214,000 (Note 26) to M-Bar.

The directors (including the independent non-executive directors) consider
these continuing connected transactions have been conducted in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group on normal commercial
terms and continuation of these transactions in the future will be
beneficial to the Group.

These continuing connected transactions have also been reviewed by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company who have confirmed
that such continuing connected transactions have been (a) entered into by
the Group in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (b)
conducted on normal commercial terms; and (c) entered into in accordance
with the terms of the lease agreements governing the transactions on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole. The independent non-executive directors
of the Company have also confirmed that the aggregate value of the
transactions were within the respective maximum amounts as agreed with
the Stock Exchange.

The auditors of the Company have also confirmed to the Board that these
continuing connected transactions have received the approval of the Board
and have been entered into in accordance with the terms of the lease
agreements governing the transactions. The auditors of the Company have
also confirmed that the aggregate value of the transactions were within
the respective maximum amounts as agreed with the Stock Exchange.
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Report of the Directors
o

Distributable Reserves

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda (as amended), retained profit and
contributed surplus are distributable to shareholders, subject to the
condition that the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make
a distribution out of retained profit and contributed surplus if (i) it is, or
would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due, or (ii) the realizable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium.

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st March 2018 amounted to
approximately HK$76,211,000 (2017: HK$78,212,000).

Five Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
each of the last five financial years is set out on pages 135 and 136.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2018
were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office
will expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution for
the re-appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as the auditors of
the Company for the subsequent year is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

On behalf of the board of directors

Hung Kim Fung, Measure
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26th June 2018
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Independent Auditors’ Report
T S A R

B &t 0 F AR
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF
MOBICON GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Mobicon
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the "Group”) set out on pages 50 to 134, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st March 2018, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31st March
2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Qur responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
T S A B

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Inventory valuation and allowance

17 18 A 16 S 43 5

Refer to Note 2 and Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
BN E VB WERM T2 R M7 o

We identified the valuation and allowance of inventories as a °
key audit matter due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined with

the judgements associated with determining the amount of
allowances on inventories.
ENFEEREEM S RV BBRERBEE  NELEEFE o
BB TENRRAE - it RMBEEFENGERES
REARETEIE -

At 31st March 2018, the Group held gross inventories of
approximately HK$173,681,000. As described in the accounting .
policies in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements,
inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable

value. As a result, the management assesses the net realizable o
value of slow moving stocks with reference to the stock ageing
report. Inventories are written down to their net realizable value °
where this falls below their cost.
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Evaluating whether inventories were stated at the
lower of cost and net realizable value at the reporting
date by comparing the sales prices of inventories
subsequent to the reporting date with their carrying
values as at 31st March 2018; and
FRFREAPRIEFEEERFENR - —N\F
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ERBRKAENAIZERFE(ARES RE) T
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Evaluating analysis and assessment made by
management with respect to slow-moving inventories;
and

AEERESRFHTFEMEZ DN RAHE - &

Checking for individual products that invoiced costs
have been correctly recorded; and
RESEREMNERD ERCHEIERER &

Assessing whether items in the inventory ageing report
were classified within the appropriate ageing category
by comparing individual items in the report with the
underlying documentation.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
T S A R

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Valuation of trade receivables

A Wt B o W K 4 A L

Refer to Note 2 and Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
ELHRA VS RERM 2 R M8 o

As at 31st March 2018, trade receivables amounted to
approximately HK$51,657,000 (net of allowance for doubtful
debts of approximately HK$470,000).
RZZE-NF=ZA=+T—H ' EWREHKRKA 51,657,000
P IT (B HIBR R R B 49470,0007T)

We identified the valuation of trade receivables as a key
audit matter due to the size of the balance and the use of
judgement and estimates in assessing the recoverability of trade
receivables.
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In determining the allowance for trade receivables, the
management considers the credit history including default or
delay in payments, settlement records, subsequent settlements
and ageing analysis of the trade receivables.
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Assessing whether items in the trade receivables
ageing report were classified within the appropriate
ageing category by comparing individual items in the
report with underlying documentation; and
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Reviewing the ageing analysis of the trade receivables
throughout the year to understand the settlement
patterns by the customers; and
EHRKEGRFBEFE 2RO ATHE
PrEMER &

Testing subsequent settlement of trade receivables
balances and assessing the reasonableness of
recoverability of trade receivables that were past due
with reference to the credit history of those customers,
including default or delay in payments, settlement
records and correspondence and ageing analysis of
each individual customer.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
T S A B

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and The Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
T S A R

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
T S A B

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
T S A R

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Kwok Kin Leung.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Kwok Kin Leung
Practising Certificate Number: PO5769

Hong Kong, 26th June 2018

12 BB O 2 B A% o I R R I
M= AL @)

HEBHEEREROTET - RIOETHLE
BYARGARERENBHSAEE - @AM
B E S B8 - BFE AT E e
EEF  BIEARNERTASARBBEE LS
5 ERmERLNBRT  REGIETBHER
MmET BB FEERNEEEBRBELN
ABFF  BFRETEERS P EBLEE -

HEARB L ZEENRENETHE SRARIR

? e

EERHASHAERAT
BB R

SRfEER
HEEEZIRE - P05769

B —E-NFRAZTAKE

BREKEERQE - - N\FFH

49



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
HrEREER

For the year ended 31st March 2018 Bl E —E— \F=H=1+—HIFE

Revenue Wz 546,672 627,771
Cost of sales SHERY (419,909) (477,697)
Gross profit ES 126,763 150,074
Other income and gains Hiplg A R zE 6 5,901 14111
Distribution and selling expenses SE R SNE B (44,040) (50,790)
General and administrative expenses —RRTHERER (92,012) (104,406)
Operating (loss)/profit (BB H (3,388) 8,989
Finance costs Bl& B AN 8 (2,541) (2,496)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BETERAT(ER) S5 (5,929) 6,493
Income tax expense Frigfif s 9 (5,080) (5,241)
(Loss)/profit for the year FEREEB), B H 7 (11,009) 1,252
(Loss)/profit attributable to: FE(E (E1R) %A
Equity holders of the Company AAREREBA (17,132) (3,763)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR RE S 6,123 5,015
(11,009) 1,252
Loss per share attributable to FARRBERFEA

the equity holders of the Company (S EREE
during the year

— Basic and diluted (HK cents) — B G EESECEN) 10 (1.88)

Details of dividends are disclosed in Note 11 to the consolidated financial B EFFIERERE P EREWE113HE -
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
e A et

For the year ended 31st March 2018 Bl E —ZE— \F=H=1+—HILFE

(Loss)/profit for the year FERX(EE), 5 (11,009)

Other comprehensive income HigZEUA
Items that may be reclassified HiErmEH B2

subsequently to profit or loss HBwm 2 HE
Currency translation differences: ERiRE R
— Subsidiaries — KB AT 4,076
Release of translation reserve upon s B E QR

disposal of an associate EERIRERE 42
Item that will not be reclassified HEETEETHHE

subsequently to profit or loss HBwm 2 HE
Revaluation loss on property, BHUE BER

plant and equipment Btz 18 (344)
Other comprehensive income, HEib 2w A

net of tax (BHE&RTIE) 3.774
Total comprehensive 2EBIX),WALE

(expense)/income 5,026
Total comprehensive (expense)/income  fE(E2@E (), WA

attributable to: FEEC
Equity holders of the Company RARERFEA (12.414) (3.007)
Non-controlling interests JENERRAE RS 8,322 8,033

(4,092) 5,026

BREKEERQE - - N\FFH
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR B AR DL

As at 31st March 2018 R—ZE— N\F=A=+—H

Non-current assets

FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment W - BE k&G 14
Interests in associates i N o 16
Other receivables o MR IE

Current assets REBEE

Inventories =g 17
Trade receivables fEUE S ER R 18
Other receivables and deposits oA e YR IE MR & 26(b)
Current income tax recoverable Al Uk B B ERFR 15 A

Cash and bank balances We MIRITHER 19
Total assets BEHE

Current liabilities REBEE

Trade payables FEE SRR 20
Other payables and accruals HibENERESER  26(c)
Finance lease liabilities HEHEaR 22
Short-term bank loans WERRITER 21
Current income tax liabilities BIERFTSF B E

Net current assets REBEEFE

Total assets less current liabilities EEZERABHERE

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2018

16,917

4,704

ARYA|

173,681
51,657
22,519

180
28,251

276,348

297,969

25,366
11,166
14
92,590
640

129,776

146,572

168,193

179,548
47,078
19,693

1,134
45,738

293,191

317,028

31,627
23,741
13
80,200
274

135,855

157,336

181,173




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e I EIROLER

As at 31st March 2018 R=—Z—N\EF=A=+—H

Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Finance lease liabilities MEHEEE 22 43 52

43 52

Net assets EEFE 168,150 181,121

Capital and reserves attributable  &KAFERIZTEA

to the equity holders of AR R B
the Company
Share capital [N 23 20,000 20,000
Reserves Gt 122,107 138,706
142,107 158,706
Non-controlling interests JEIERRESS 26,043 22,415
Total equity RSB 168,150 181,121

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorized for #RAMBERERER_Z—NF A+ ~HEZ
issue by the Board of Directors on 26th June 2018 and signed on its behalf ~ EE#ERFETE  TETIHEFREESS

by: %=
HUNG KIM FUNG, MEASURE YEUNG MAN YI, BERYL
HalE B8E
Chairman Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
FiE EIEERTTHAEE

BREKEERQE - - N\FFH
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
AR ER

For the year ended 31st March 2018 HHZE — T —N\F=A=+—HIFE

Balance at 1st April 2016 RIZ-RENA-Bz&R 20,000 16,706 800 (12841) 6059 13273 143456 18124 181580
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FRZENALE - - - 1100 (344 (3763 (3007) 8,033 5026
Acquisition of additional interests WE-HNBLRRMER
in a subsidiary - - - - - Jhlj Jhlj 3810 4067
Release of revaluation reserve upon N%  BERRENER
depreciation of property, plant and EREHGEE
equipment - - - - (213) 13 - - -
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests B0 T3k kigz 2 k& - - - - - - - (1550 (159%)
Dividends of the Company: KRARE
2016 final dividend “E-RERERE - - - - = (1000} (1.000] - [1000)
2017 interim dividend “S-LERERE - - - - = (1000} (1,000} - [1000)
Balance at 31st March 2017 RoB-tE
ZAZT-BzkH 2000 16,706 800 (11741) 5502 127439 138706 2415 181121
Representing; RER:
2017 final dividend “E-+ERERS 1,000
Others £ 126439
127439

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2018



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
o R

For the year ended 31st March 2018 HHLZE — T —N\F=A=+—HIFE

Balance at 1st April 2017 REF-LENA-R &% 20000 16,706 R ) VAN VW 1 R/ B/ 11 R WV

Total comprehensive expense for the year — FR2EEREE - - - 4818 (100) (17032 (12414 830 (4,092)

Acquisition of additional interests WE-BNBL DR MER

in a subsidiary - - - - - 08 (2188 (46%) (6879
Release of revaluation reserve upon nE BERRETES

depreciation of property, plant and BRE[REE

equipment - - - - 149) 149 - - -
Dividends of the Company: FRARE
2017 final dividend “E-rERERE - - - - - (10000 {1,000 - (1,000)
2018 interim dividend “E-\FhERS - - - - - (10000 (1,000 - (1,000
Balance at 31st March 2018 RZZ-NE

ZB=t-HzE&4% 20000 16,706 800 (6923 5253 106211 122101 26043 168,150
Representing: =y
2018 final dividend “E-\ERGRS 1,000
Others £ 105,271

106,271

Note: MEE

Capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of the ordinary shares ~ BEANEEIIEARAREHETE BB 2 EAE  ERE-_TT
issued by the Company and the aggregate of the share capital and share premium of ~ —F WA+ N\Bi#EfT 2 EEZRRDETEZHE A R
subsidiaries acquired through exchanges of shares pursuant to the reorganization which took I ERDEE 2 @MW E 2 HEZEFE ©

place on 18th April 2001.

BREASEARAR - —E-N\FEH
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BHEBAeTER
For the year ended 31st March 2018 Bl E —E— \F=H=1+—HIFE

Cash flows from operating activities REEKEE > HERE

Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment

HEME - BER&E
FS5K0R

Net cash (used in)/generated from s (BR) EEY
operations ReFHE 24

Overseas income tax paid EAEINISEL

Overseas income tax refunded EONTIS TR TR

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BEREBREH

Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded EENGTRN

Net cash (used in)/generated from KSR (BR) EEZ
operating activities e

Cash flows from investing activities R &EEZEBELEHEHE

Interest received B UFE

Purchase of property, plant and BEWE  BFEREE
equipment 14

Net cash used in investing activities

RETHPA2REFHR

Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid

Dividends paid to the Company's

shareholders

Dividends paid to non-controlling

interests

Acquisition of additional interests

in a subsidiary

Repayments of short-term bank loans
Repayments of finance lease liabilities
Proceeds from short-term bank loans

RETHELZRERE
ERHME
BEIRTARBBRRZ
BB

Bk TR R
e

Weis —EH B A A
BIMES

R RIRITER
EEREHEAR
EHIIRTTE RS RIA

Net cash generated from/(used in)

financing activities

MEEDEL/(BH)Z
b e

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2018

(10,996)
(3,550)

(450)
224

(14,772)

(6,879)

(575,670)
(14)
587,838

43,067
(6,908)
52
(186)

(2,496)

(2,000)

(1,692)

(652,220)
(1)
631,698

(26,711)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
ABATERER

For the year ended 31st March 2018 Bl E —ZE— \F=H=1+—HILFE

Net (decrease)/increase in RERBRESEEY
cash and cash equivalents CR2), /g hnE5E (15,869) 4,839

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F# 24 KIELEEY
of the year 45,738 39,963

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EX @ &) g2 (1,618) 936

Cash and cash equivalents atend SX&CHERBELZEY

of the year 45,738
Analysis of balances of cash and BeRASZEEY

cash equivalents: HEER DT
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERS 28,251 45,738

BERAEEERAT - - \FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A T A B B

2.1

General Information

Mobicon Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) are principally engaged in the trading
and distribution of electronic parts, components and equipment
and computer products and mobile accessories and trading of
cosmetic products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda as an exempted company under the Companies Act of
Bermuda. The addresses of its registered office and principal place
of business are set out in the Company’s annual report.

The Company’s shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 7th May 2001.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless
otherwise stated.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of property, plant and
equipment, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A A B

AT

2.1

(a)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

Amendments to existing standards effective for annual periods
beginning on 1st April 2017, relevant to the Group's operation and
adopted by the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealized Losses

As part of the Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 12

The Group has adopted these standards and the adoption of these
standards did not have a significant impact on the Group’s result
and financial position.

There are no other new standards or amendments to standards that
are effective for the first time for the financial year beginning on or
after 1st April 2017 that are expected to have a material impact on
the Group.

The amendments to HKAS 7 require disclosure of changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, see Note 24.

2

2.1

(a)

FEGHBRME 2

B LA (48 )
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PAHES A-T-—mEs
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FRIEZ R

AEBERMZFERNREREAZFLER
BB 2 A RPN EERAE
MEAZE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A T A B B

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

(b) New standards, amendments to existing standards and
interpretations which have been issued but are not effective for
the financial year beginning on 1st April 2017 and have not been

early adopted:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 15
Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28
Amendments to HKAS 28
Amendments to HKAS 40
Amendments to HKFRSs
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Financial Instruments'

Revenue from Contracts
with Customers'

Leases?

Insurance Contracts®

Classification and
Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transaction'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contract

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Clarification to HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers’

Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement?

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

As part of the Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 20142016 Cycle!

Transfers of Investment Property’
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle?
Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’
Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2019
S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2021.
¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A T A B B

2.1

(c)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after
1st April 2017 and have not been applied in preparing these
consolidated financial statements. None of these is expected to
have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group, except the following set out below:

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

The new standard addresses the classification, measurement
and derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities,
introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment
model for financial assets.

The Group does not expect the new guidance to have a significant
impact on the classification and measurement of its financial
assets because a fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI”) election is available for the equity instrument which is
currently classified as available-for-sale and the Group does not
have the following financial assets:

- Debt instrument that is classified as available-for-sale
financial asset;

- Debt instrument classified as held-to-maturity and
measured at amortized cost; and

= Equity investment measured at fair value through profit or
loss.

There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting for financial
liabilities, as the new requirements only affect the accounting
for non-derivative financial liabilities that are designated at fair
value through profit or loss and the Group does not have any such
liabilities. The derecognition rules have been transferred from
HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”
and have not been changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A T A B B

2.1

(c)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after
1st April 2017 and have not been applied in preparing these
consolidated financial statements. None of these is expected to
have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group, except the following set out below: (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued)

The new impairment model requires the recognition of impairment
provisions based on expected credit losses rather than only
incurred credit losses as is the case under HKAS 39. It applies
to financial assets classified at amortized cost, debt instruments
measured at FVOCI, contract assets under HKFRS 15 “Revenue
from Contracts with Customers”, lease receivables, loan
commitments and certain financial guarantee contracts. Based on
the assessments undertaken to date, the Group does not expect
material change to its impairment provisions.

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure
requirements and changes in presentation. These are expected to
change the nature and extent of the Group's disclosures about its
financial instruments particularly in the year of the adoption of the
new standard.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

This new standard will replace HKAS 18 which covers contracts
for goods and services and HKAS 11 which covers construction
contracts. The new standard is based on the principle that revenue
is recognized when control of a good or service transfers to a
customer. The standard permits either a full retrospective or a
modified retrospective approach for the adoption.

Management has assessed the effects of applying the new
standard on the Group’s financial statements and considered there
would be no material changes to the existing revenue recognition
policy in this regard. Since HKFRS 15 is mandatory for financial
years commencing on or after 1st April 2018, the Group does not
intend to adopt the standard before its effective date

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A A B

AT

2.1

(c)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after
1st April 2017 and have not been applied in preparing these
consolidated financial statements. None of these is expected to
have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group, except the following set out below: (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being recognized on the
consolidated balance sheet, as the distinction between operating
and finance leases is removed. Under the new standard, an asset
(the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay
rentals are recognized. The only exceptions are short-term and low
value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for the Group’s
operating leases. As at the reporting date, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of approximately
HK$34,372,000. However, the Group has not yet determined to
what extent these commitments will result in the recognition of an
asset and a liability for future payments and how this will affect
the Group's profit and classification of cash flows.

Some of the commitments may be covered by the exception for
short-term and low value leases and some commitments may
relate to arrangements that will not qualify as leases under HKFRS
16.

The standard is mandatory for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1st April 2019. At this stage, the Group does not intend
to adopt the standard before its effective date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A T A B B

2.2
221

(a)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Subsidiaries

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date
that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealized
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries
are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and balance sheet respectively.

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. ldentifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A A B

AT

2.2
221

(a)

(b)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Consolidation (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognized and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognized
directly in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the adjustment
to non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or received
is recognized in a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an
investment because of a loss of control, joint control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its
fair value with the change in carrying amount recognized in profit
or loss. This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where
appropriate.
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2.2
222

2.3

S B e Mk

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee's net assets including goodwill.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the case
where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting, after initially being recognized at cost.

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are
initially recognized at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize
the Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from
associates and joint ventures are recognized as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group's share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including
any other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not
recognize further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A A B

AT

2.3

2.4

2.5
(a)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Associates (continued)

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group's interest in these entities. Unrealized losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity
accounted investees have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested for
impairment in accordance with the policy described in Note 2.8.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the steering committee that
makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK dollars (HK$), which is the Company's functional and the
Group’s presentation currency.
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2.5
(b)

S B e Mk

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow
hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and
cash and cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss within “finance costs”. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss within “general and administrative
expenses”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on
assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation differences on
non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognized in profit or loss as part
of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences on non-
monetary assets such as equities classified as available-for-sale
financial assets are recognized in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A T A B B

2.5
(c)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
end of the reporting period;

(b) income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated
at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

(c) all resulting exchange differences are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other financial instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognized in other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is sold or any borrowings
forming part of the net investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as part of
the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences
arising are recognized in other comprehensive income.
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A T A B B

2.5
(d)

2.6

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint
venture that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of significant influence over an associate that includes a
foreign operation), all of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated currency translation
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognized in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that
is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interest in associates or
joint ventures that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified to profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Freehold land is stated at cost and not depreciated.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2018

2

2.5
(d)

2.6

FEFGHBRME 2

AU (48)

HEEIEBRED HE
RHEERMEB (AN EREBNBEINE
BzrHEENERRENBRAR(E
SHINER) EAEZHE BEKE
BECR(BERINER) KRAEHEZ
HE  HEHKREBRERA(BEHEIN
EBEAFENZHE )R  EEEA
HZREBHBELEBNARRERA
ZHBRAELZRAEF A REES
R WEDHETEERAKEKREH
BAR(BERINES) 225 - B
RFAERERZERELIEENRET
FEBREZRTENBRRER - 2N
A EME D HE (BIARERE SR F
REECEZEARESEN TR -
" EEBARBREEATENIHAR
ZHIHE) - RetERERZBELIIAIE
MOBPERER -

ME - BERREBRELKARENE
FREEBRIK ELKABEEES
BEE 2 EREHRX

EHIFR B ZAREENRE AR
AREE  URIBBKRARGER EFE
B HERKATFABEZ REEXE
RABUBE(RERBARAME) - B
My 2 REERSKILER - IEEMSE
ERREENEEZVBRHRANGEE
ARG

IKARREL T ATIRR - BRTIE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A A B

ey

2.6

2.7

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold properties 60 years
Furniture and fixtures 4 years
Office equipment 4 years
Motor vehicles 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the
consolidates statement of profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2.8. Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets, which
represents the excess of the consideration transferred over the
Group’s interest in net fair value of the net identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair
value of the non-controlling interest in the acquiree. Goodwill is
not amortized but it is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity
include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified
at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating segments.
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A T A B B

2.8

2.9

(a)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful
life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group classifies financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss if they are acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term, ie are held for trading. They are presented as
current assets if they are expected to be sold within 12 months
after the end of the reporting period; otherwise they are presented
as non-current assets. The Group has not elected to designate any
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
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A T A B B

2.9

(b)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. If collection of the amounts is expected in one year or less
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets. The Group's loans and receivables comprise
trade receivables, other receivables and deposits and cash and
bank balances.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognized when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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2.9

2.10

S B e Mk

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at
its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
are expensed in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are
subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value are recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss within other income or other expenses.

Dividends on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and available-for-sale equity instruments are recognized in profit
or loss as part of revenue from continuing operations when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss is included in the net gains/(losses).

Interest on loans and receivables calculated using the effective
interest method is recognized in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as part of other income.

Details on how the fair value of financial instruments is
determined are disclosed in Note 3.3.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A A B

AT

2.11

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortized cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization, and where observable data indicate that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. If
a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As
a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the
basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognized (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognized impairment loss is recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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A T A B B

2.12

2.13

2.14

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. It excludes
borrowing costs. Costs of purchased inventories are determined
after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale. Costs of inventories include the transfer
from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges
purchases of raw materials.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term,
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A T A B B

2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. Trade payable are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as
non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortized
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognized in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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A T A B B

2.19

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contract issued by the Group are initially
measured at the fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are
subsequently measured at the higher of:

o the amount of the obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

o the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortization recognized in accordance with the
revenue recognition policies.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined as the present
value of the difference in net cash flows between the contractual
payments under the debt instrument and the payments that would
be required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that
would be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A A B

AT

2.20

(a)

(b)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Company's subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilized.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except for deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by
the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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A T A B B

2.20
(c)

2.21
(a)

(b)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Current and deferred income tax (continued)
Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Employee benefits

Pension obligations

The Group operates a number of defined contribution plans, the
assets of which are generally held in independently administered
funds. The Group's contributions to the defined contribution
retirement schemes are expensed as incurred and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme
prior to vesting fully in the contributions.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognized when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liahility for annual leave and long service leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognized until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A T A B B

2.21
(c)

(d)

2.22

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
plan. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognized as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets). Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to become exercisable. At the end
of each reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to become exercisable. It
recognizes the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any,
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity. The proceeds received net of
any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium when the options are
exercised.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments are
recognized as a liability when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by
employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are expected to
be settled within 12 months and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.

Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognized when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination penalties and
employee termination payments. Provisions are not recognized for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognized even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.
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A T A B B

2.22

2.23

(c)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Provisions (continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods
supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and value added taxes.
The Group recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group's activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognized on the transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership, which generally coincides with
the time when the goods are delivered to customers and title has
passed.

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method.
When a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying
amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future
cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired receivables is recognized
using the original effective interest rate.

Service income, management fee and commission income are
recognized when the services are rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A A B

AT

2.24

2.25

2.26
(a)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group has
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalized at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased property
and the present value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
charges. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in other long-term payables. The interest
element of the finance cost is charged to the statement of profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is
depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the
lease term.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized
as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by
the Company’s shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Related parties
A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to

the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group's parent.
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A T A B B

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.26 Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:
(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;
(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other

entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the
other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management personnel
of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members

who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A T A B B

3.1

(a)
(i)

Financial Risk Management

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk,
cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury department
(group treasury) under policies approved by the Board. The Group
treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close
co-operation with the Group’s operating units. The Board provides
written principles for overall risk management, as well as written
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments
and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess
liquidity.

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong, Mainland China, South
Africa, Malaysia, Singapore, Taiwan and Thailand and is exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to United States dollars ("USD"). Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions,
recognized assets and liahilities and net investments in foreign
operations.

The directors of the Company consider that the foreign exchange
risk is not significant and the Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange risk exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange risk exposure should the need arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B A

3 Financial Risk Management (continued) 3
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1
(a) Market risk (continued) (a)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (continued) (i)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the reporting
date to a reasonably possible change in the USD exchange rates,
with all other variables held constant, of the Group's profit before
income tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and

liabilities).

R B B B )

o 5 L o I 6 (42

A E S ()

S B8 ()
TEREFRNBEINREREEREE
ATEEE - 057G B T
ZERT - AEE RSB AR
TERAALABEH Y HBE -

2018 —E-N\F
If New Taiwan dollar weakens against USD fWEr et i ETiRE
It New Taiwan dollar strengthens against USD ¥ &% % Z 1 FHE
If Singapore dollar weakens against USD WML ETEE
If Singapore dollar strengthens against USD fHEFT KR TR ELHE
If South African Rand weakens against USD WEEBELELRE
If South African Rand strengthens against USD WEEEELELHE
2017 e o
If New Taiwan dollar weakens against USD fEr et i ETRE 5% (386) -
If New Taiwan dollar strengthens against USD (4748 E A -5% 386 -
I Singapore dollar weakens against USD TR R TR A 5% (133) -
If Singapore dollar strengthens against USD fHET K TR ETHE -5% 133 -
If South African Rand weakens against USD R FE SR ETRE 5% (91) -
If South African Rand strengthens against USD WL ETHE -5% 91 -
o Excluding retained profits * TEEEFER
(ii) Price risk (ii) EFE 7 Bz

The Group is not exposed to significant price risks during the years

ended 31st March 2018 and 2017.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B A

3.1
(a)
(iii)

Financial Risk Management (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly
attributable to its interest-bearing bank borrowings. Borrowings
issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk. Details of the Group's interest-bearing borrowings
have been disclosed in Note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policies. However, management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before income tax (through the
impact on floating rate borrowings) and the Group's equity.

3.1
(a)
(iii)
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2018 —E-N\F

Floating rate borrowings FEER

Floating rate borrowings FEEE

2017 —E—tF

Floating rate borrowings FEEE 50 (401) -

Floating rate borrowings FEEE (50) 401 -
* Excluding retained profits " TEERTHT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A T A B B

3.1
(b)

(c)

Financial Risk Management (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk

The Group reviews the recoverability of its financial assets
periodically to ensure that potential credit risk of the counterparty
is managed at an early stage and sufficient provision is made for
possible defaults. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The
credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise
cash and bank balances, and other receivables, arises from default
of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in Note 18
to the consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the
Board, which has built an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Group’s short, medium and
long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The
Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and
reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities.

At 31st March 2018, the Group had several short-term bank loans
with carrying amounts of approximately HK$92,590,000 (2017:
HK$80,200,000).

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BRI

3  Financial Risk Management (continued) 3 WMEREEHe)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 WMEBEEBEEE)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) TmEBELEREGE)

AEBeREERBENRS BHRS
KRR B E 2D HERMT

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
as at the reporting date, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, was as follows:

2018 ZE-N\E§
Trade payables ERESER 25,366 25,366 25,366
Other payables and accruals 4 et 308
REER 9,181 9,181 9,181
Finance lease liabilities BEMERR 174 16 64 51
Short-term bank loans BHETER 330 93,189 93,189 92,590
121,152 127,800 127,194
2017 —E+F
Trade payables ERESER 31,627 - - - 31,627 31,627
Other payables and accruals =4 708
LB ER 22,676 - - - 22676 22,616
Finance lease liabilities RERERE 174 15 5 - - 74 65
Short-term bank loans RERTER 290 80,650 - - - 80,650 80,200
134,968 n9 - - 135,027 134,568

BERAEEERLR - —B-N\FFER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B A

Financial Risk Management (continued)
Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including short-term banks loans)
less cash and cash equivalents.

The Group's strategy remains unchanged and the gearing ratios at
31st March 2018 and 2017 were as follows:

Total borrowings
Less: Cash and cash equivalents

tEERE

B R RREEHED

R B B B )

25 A, e 5 7

AEBERERY BIEARERERT
SIS > B F) - T 0 AR TR R 4 B 3R
RAHMEREE ABENN  URE
BREEREHELURES SRA -

RERFRABRELERE  AEEAHE
ARFREKNZBREEE MERREER
ARBEITHRAEEEERE °

AEBREERBLRERER - It
RNREBFEGAESEETE - &
BERLREEAR(BREMRTE
FORAE LR EFEME -

AREZRBERTE - R-_F—N\F
E—Z—+tH=A=+—RHZEEBRE
HERT

92,590
(28,251)

80,200
(45,738)

64,339

168,150 181,121

Net debt BT
Total equity T 4ATE
Gearing ratio AEAMALE

38%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A T A B B

3.3

Financial Risk Management (continued)

Fair value estimation

The table below analyzes financial instruments carried at fair
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been defined
as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices)

(level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable input) (level
3).

At 31st March 2018 and 2017, the Group did not have any financial
assets and liabilities that are measured at the above fair value
measurements hierarchy.

There were no significant transfers of financial assets between
Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B A

3  Financial Risk Management (continued) 3 WMEREEHe)

3.4 Financial instruments by category 34  ERETHRER
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial ZemITEEANHRE RSP REEN
instruments at the reporting date are as follows: )5

TRMEE

Financial assets

Loans and receivables: B R WIS -
— Trade receivables —EUE BRI
— Other receivables and deposits — Efh e R IE R iR E
— Cash and bank balances — e RIRTTHEH
Financial liabilities AR
Amortized costs: BEAEROR
— Trade payables -~ ERE SRR 25,366
— Other payables and accruals — E A R RUE
fEETE A 9,181
— Finance lease liabilities -BERERRE 57
— Short-term bank loans —IBHIRITE R 92,590
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A T A B B

(a)

(b)

©

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

Net realizable value of inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less variable selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer demand
and competitor actions. Management reassesses these estimates
at the end of each reporting date.

Estimated recoverability of trade and other
receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables based on ongoing assessment of
the recoverability of the receivables. This assessment is based
on the credit history of its customers and other debtors and
current market conditions, and requires the use of judgements and
estimates. Management reassesses the provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables at the end of each reporting period.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount of
the provision for income taxes. There are certain transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the current income
tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

4

(a)

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B A

5

Revenue and Segment Information
Revenue recognized during the year is as follows:

L&Y Tig Vg

RIS

Revenue g

Sales of electronic components, automation
parts and equipment NiEs

Sales of computer products, mobile
accessories and service income

Sales of cosmetic products fHE b

HEE T - A8Art

HEEMER - TH
FC LA B2 AR A5 UL A

309,029 350,913

111,847 108,169
125,796 168,689

546,672 627,771

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive directors of the Company (the “Executive Directors”). The
Executive Directors have reviewed the Group's internal reports in
order to assess the performance and allocate resources; they have
also determined the operating segments based on these reports.
Upon the expansion of the trading of cosmetic retail business,
the Executive Directors have further considered the business
from product perspective and have assessed the performance of
three main business segments: (i) Electronic Trading Business
— Distribution of electronic components, automation parts and
equipment; and (i) Computer Business — Retail sales of computer
products, mobile accessories, distribution of computer products
and provision of IT outsourcing and solution services and (iii)
Cosmetic and Online Retail Business — Retail and distribution of
cosmetic products through retail shops and online channels.

The Executive Directors have assessed the performance of the
operating segments based on segment results before corporate
expenses and finance costs.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A T A B B

S

Revenue and Segment Information (continued)
The segment results for the year ended 31st March 2018 are as

follows:

Revenue

Iz

Segment results NEEE

Finance costs BMEKA

Loss before income tax BRETERAER
Income tax expense (Note 9) BTS2 (H37E9)
Loss for the year FRER

Other segment items included in
the consolidated statement of
profit or loss are as follows:

Depreciation

Provision for impairment of
trade receivables

Reversal of provision for trade
receivable

(Reversal)/provision for
slow-moving inventories

HFAGRBRER
ZABBEWT

&
BN E SRR ERE
[EYE SR EERD

mEEE(BERR),/
B

309,029

10,047

Wtk B &R )
BHE-_ZTE—"N\F=A=1+—BLtEFE
PELENT :

111,847

887

125,796 546,672

(14,268) (54) (3,388)
(2,541)

(5,929)
(5,080)

(11,009)

BREKEERQE - - N\FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B A

5  Revenue and Segment Information (continued) 5 — Wi#i R BM&E B @)
The segment results for the year ended 31st March 2017 are as HE-_ZT—tFEZA=Z+—HLEFE
follows: DEEENT :

Revenue Wi 350,913 108,169 168,689 - 627,771
Segment results DEEE 9,809 (1,528 (6,577) 7,285 8,989
Finance costs BB A (2,496)
Profit before income tax R BBAER 6,493
Income tax expense (Note 9) FE R R (ff3E9) (5,241)
Profit for the year FEREF 1,252

Other segment items included in = EH 3| A& 1B %
the consolidated statementof 2 HEBEEMT :
profit or loss are as follows:

Depreciation nE 1,266 633 4,908 - 6,807
Provision for impairment of EWE FEEFURERE
trade receivables 243 - - - 243
Reversal of provision for EWE FERFURERE
impairment of trade o
receivables (34) - - - (34)
Provision for slow-moving BETFERE
inventories 2,504 97 . - 2,601
Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, PHEEEFZREME - BRERREHE -
intangible assets, inventories, trade and other receivables and BEEE TE BUESEFRREM
cash and bank balances. Unallocated assets comprise current FEUGRIBLA RIB & RIRITA R - KO8
income tax recoverable and other receivables. & B B 15 ] W s BN EA P45 B I E M RE UK
FRIE o
Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities. Unallocated PHABREKEREE ROHEEES
liabilities comprise items such as other payables and accruals, BHEMENFRBEREGER  EMEF
current income tax liabilities and short-term bank loans. MEBBEREHRTEREZIER -
Additions to non-current assets comprise additions to property, REFNDEECRABEDE  BEK
plant and equipment (Note 14). = (fEE14) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B A

5  Revenue and Segment Information (continued) 5 — W2k K5 & Bl 2)

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2018 and R-E—NEZA=Z+—BHZHBEE
additions to non-current assets for the year then ended are as LEBEURBZEZALEFEZAREIER
follows: FEENT

Assets E 230,142 24117 38,248 5,462 297,969

Liabilities =L 94,386 10,434 24,9717 22 129,819
Additions to non-current assets FEIERBEE 844 648 694 2,186
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2017 and R-E—tF=ZA=+—"HBZ2oHEE
additions to non-current assets for the year then ended are as MBEAREBEEZBILEFEZAEER

follows: HEEMT :

Assets BE 232,539 27,671 49,548 1210 317,028
Liabilities = 94,054 6,165 33,614 2,074 135,907
Additions to non-current assets  REBIEREEE 2,672 303 1,954 - 4,929

BERAEEERAT - - \FFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B A

5  Revenue and Segment Information (continved) 5 — W R ER 2)
The Group's revenue is generated mainly within Hong Kong, Asia REEZHRFERES  DAME -
Pacific, South Africa and Europe.

Revenue

Hong Kong (country of domicile)

Asia Pacific
South Africa
Europe

Other countries

FEREUMESE ©

Wz
8 GEMER) 369,645 435,436
TR 91,009 106,357
B3 78,314 76,704

BOM 1,659 1,888
HEIxR 6,045 7,386

546,672 627,771
Revenue is allocated based on the country in which the customer is WasRE P EBRRDE ©
located.

Total assets
Hong Kong
Asia Pacific
South Africa

BEERME
BB 198,417 220,992
AR 27,233 30,646
EEL: 66,857 58,120

Unallocated assets

292,507 309,758
KOEEE 5,462 1,270

297,969 317,028

Total assets are allocated based on where the assets are located. BEMABIREEMREHDE -

98 Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B A

5

Revenue and Segment Information (continued)

Additions to non-current assets REFRBEE
Hong Kong e

Asia Pacific 25K M &
South Africa EE:

We g B i G BE )

Additions to non-current assets is allocated based on where the
assets are located.

The total of non-current assets other than financial instruments
located in Hong Kong, Asia Pacific and South Africa are
approximately HK$2,959,000, HK$10,853,000 and HK$3,105,000
respectively (2017: approximately HK$5,139,000, HK$10,497,000
and HK$2,825,000 respectively).

Information about major customers
No customer accounted for 10% or more of the total revenue for
the years ended 31st March 2018 and 2017.

NEFRBDEEREEMEBNE °

MURBER BAMENREIIEZERDE
EBE (ST ARSI 5 54942959,000
77T+ 10,853,000 7T 13,105,000 7L (=&
—+4F : 5 BII49/45,139,0007% 7T + 10,497,000
75 7T }.2,825,00075 7T ) °

ARTEEEPZER
BHE_ZTZ-N\EFEkZ-—+tH=H
=ET—RLEFE BETPMKEERE
10% kA £ o

BERAEEERLR - —B-N\FFER
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AR B A

oAt e A e Wi i

6 Other Income and Gains 6

Management fee received from an associate
(Note 26(a))

Management fee received from third parties

Commission income

Interest income from bank deposits

Gain on disposal of associates

Other income

[N i) /NI
EIRE (F17E26(a))
BWE=HERE
FAEBA

ERITIF R BN
HER A ARz e
=L ON

(Loss)/Profit for the Year

(Loss)/profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

Costs of inventories expensed

Employee benefit expense (Note 12)

Depreciation of owned property,
plant and equipment

Provision for impairment of trade receivables
(included in general and administrative
expenses)

Reversal of provision for impairment of
trade receivables

(Reversal of)/provision for slow-moving
inventories (included in cost of sales)

Operating lease rentals in respect of
rented premises

Auditors’ remuneration

Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment (included in general and
administrative expenses)

Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) (included in
general and administrative expenses)

7 SFRUER) R
FERER) HHEMR GIA)T

I B IR

FEKARX 419,909
RERNFE (FfEE12) 59,533
BEVX  BEMREIE
4,700
F& W E 5 B BUR (B R 1
(BtA—RRE
THERER)
U 5 AR SR (B B s

HHTE(BERE), BE
(Bt AHERA)
GENEEYE A S bith-Cickn

R ERED I =

HEME - BFER&REZ
Wz (Bt A
—RETREZER)

P EE, (W) FRE(E R
A—BRRITBRERER)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B A

8 Finance Costs

Interest expense on short-term bank loans
Finance lease charges BEREER

RERIRITE R BRI

il A

9 Income Tax Expense
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit arising in or
derived from Hong Kong for the year. Taxation on overseas profits
has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year
at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

Fin 15 Bt B 52
BENGHREFARBEELLRA
BRI ERBENIR165%(—F—+t
F165%) ZBREME - BINENZ BIR
BERMBTRARTORN AR EBE L
BEREFIREGNE -

Current income tax BIEAFTIS T

- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BEFEH

— Overseas taxation —HNETE

— Qver provision in prior years —BFFERBEEE
Income tax expense P57 5 32

BERAEEERAT - - \FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B A

9  Income Tax Expense (continued) 9
The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong Profits
Tax rate as follows:

(Loss)/profit before income tax

BrPriS BRI (B518), i A

i3 BB X )

REBRF AN HERERE
BREMBESE Y BRAKERR - #
FanR

Tax calculated at Hong Kong Profits Tax REBNESBIE16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) (ZZ—+%F :165%)
FTEZBIE
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMBEREEZHNE
operating in other countries RARNEBRERzE
Tax losses of subsidiaries not recognized AR Z B AR
FIAEE
Utilization of previously unrecognized B R S0 Al M R TR
tax losses BIEEE
Over provision in prior years BEFEBBEEME
Others Eth
Income tax expense P57 5 32

As the Company is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda,
it is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until 2035.

As at 31st March 2018, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$64,338,000 (2017: HK$47,766,000) available for
offset against future profits (subject to the approval of the relevant
tax authorities). No deferred tax asset had been recognized in
respect of such tax losses due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. The tax losses have no expiry date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B A

10

11

Loss Per Share 10 HREHR

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended BE_ZT—)\F=ZA=+—HILFEZ
31st March 2018 is based on the Group’s loss attributable to BERERNEBDRADNRERFEE AR
equity holders of the Company of approximately HK$17,132,000 AR B E184917,132,0008 (T —+
(2017: HK$3,763,000) and on the weighted average number of F 3,763,000 T) KFRNSBHITERR
200,000,000 (2017: 200,000,000) ordinary shares in issue during 2 Hn#E S 5 £0200,000,0000% (= —+F :
the year. 200,000,0008% )51 &

The diluted loss per share is equal to the basic loss per share as HRARFREBEEZE_TE-N\FR=ZF
the Company has no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue —tF=RA=1T—RHLEFELELMFMA
during the years ended 31st March 2018 and 2017. BEBETE BRTEBRR  WER

BEEERERENEEMER -

Dividends 11 A

Interim dividend paid of HK cents 0.5 BIRF B BB AR E AR

(2017: HK cents 0.5) per ordinary share 05BN ZZE—+F -
0.5%(l)
Proposed final dividend of HK cents 0.5 R A AR B AR m AR
(2017: HK cents 0.5) per ordinary share 05BN =T — 4 :
0.5%(l)
At a meeting held on 22nd June 2017, the directors of the Company RZE—tEFAAAZTZABRITZER
proposed a final dividend of HK cents 0.5 per ordinary share in F ARFEFERRNEBEE_Z—+
respect of the year ended 31st March 2017. FZA=1T-HIEFEZREKREER
L 3ERR0.578 1l o
At a meeting held on 26th June 2018, the directors of the Company RZZE-NFARAZTRBRITZEH
proposed a final dividend of HK cents 0.5 per ordinary share in E ARRAEFERRNBE=Z—N
respect of the year ended 31st March 2018. This proposed final FZA=Z+—HLEFEZRBRESR
dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in these financial L MAR05 L o L IEEIK B R B AR B
statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained FGRESHMBERRIIERNRE - g
profits for the year ending 31st March 2019. NABE_ZE-NEF=A=+—HIF

B2 BT AR

BERAEEERAT - - \FFR
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AR B A

12

(a)

Employee Benefit Expense 12 REMARX

Salaries, wages and other benefits = 56,245

Pension costs — defined contribution plans BIRE KA — FREtREHEl 3,288

Total employee benefit expense B Et&FIF X 4258

(including directors’ remuneration) (BREZH)

Pensions — defined contribution plans (a) BIRE—EBEKE S
The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the RNEERAREBARERELHSHMHEHME
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”). The AESHE([BELETE]) - 8BS
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by an B ERMHNREE - WHBIEFEAE
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group o RERERTE - AEERHEES
and its employees makes monthly contribution to the scheme at BEBREBERA(ERRAFERES
5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory FTEIRGI)5% T AmZETEER - BE
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The employer's and MiEEHF 2T A LR A30,000% T
employees’ contribution is subject to a cap of monthly earnings of (ZZ—+%F : 30,000 7T) °

HK$30,000 (2017: HK$30,000).

Mobicon-Remote Electronic Sdn. Bhd., a 95% owned subsidiary Mobicon-Remote Electronic Sdn. Bhd. (44 &
of the Group, has arranged for its employees in Malaysia to join HEBWER MBARE BB RAR
the Employee Provident Fund Scheme (“the EPF Scheme”). The EEZHZ2BEEERARESFE([AES
EPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by the &) - RERFEI T EREEREE
government of Malaysia. Under the EPF Scheme, the employer WEHSERARHFER - BREAESE
and its employees make monthly contribution to the scheme 2 BEREEEDIREEWA(ER
at 13% and 11%, respectively, of the employees’ earnings as BR—NMN—FRERAESESL)Z213% K
defined under the Employee Provident Fund Act 1991, and the 1% A RZET &I o BREEFBAIN - K
Group has no further obligations for the actual pension payments SEYEAMNEBEERRKSMNRIGR
or post-retirement benefits beyond its contributions. The relevant KEeRAzE—LEE - BERABRN#EE
government agency is responsible for the pension obligation ABERRKNEEXZTRRS -

payable to the retired employees.
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A A B

ey

12
(a)

Employee Benefit Expense (continued)
Pensions — defined contribution plans (continued)
Mobicon-Remote Electronic Pte Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, has arranged for its employees in Singapore to
join the Central Provident Fund Scheme (“the CPF Scheme”). The
CPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by the
government of Singapore. Under the CPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees make monthly contribution to the scheme at
17% and 20%, respectively, of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Central Provident Fund Act, and the Group has no further
obligations for the actual pension payments or post-retirement
benefits beyond its contributions. The relevant government agency
is responsible for the pension obligation payable to the retired
employees.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its
employees in Mainland China as determined by the relevant local
governments, which are defined contribution plans. Contributions
are based on certain percentage of the applicable salaries of its
employees in Mainland China and have no further obligations for
the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond
the annual contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans
are responsible for the pension obligations payable to the retired
employees.

Pursuant to the Labor Pension Act of Republic of China, the Group
contributes its employees in Taiwan of no less than 6% of its
employees monthly wages to the employee’s individual pension
account. The Group’s contributions are expensed as incurred.

12
(a)

12 B & A b 32 )

BIRE — AR (2)
Mobicon-Remote Electronic Pte Ltd. (ANEE & &
EWBRAR)E RIIMNKEIEE ZELHF
RAEEREFHE(THFRRBEEFTE]) o F
RABERFTE D EEERAE - WHEH
TMEBNERE - BEBEFRAESFE -
EEREEEADNEZEERA(EERF
RNFERIE) 217% K 20%E A R ZaT 84
Koo BRUEFRBASN - ANE BN EAE A H
ERRRENRSIGRIKERI 2#E—F
Eff - EEBRNKEABEAERRKESR
SRR SE -

RETBERNEROIFATR AEES
TR B A B R B R E B R IKE
ER R BRERREARE L RTE
o M St RAEBEREE - 1K
BRTENLEEBERFEETESL
AE - BREFEHISN  AREYLEIMA
ERERERRENKIBARREN ZE
—SEE - BREPRKAEEABER
BREEXTRAE

PR ERE S TRIKS &0 A%
EREAEIER Y EARKSESER
RORZLLEE G A TE% 2 B o A&
S5 8] 2 BB B S B o

BREKEERQE - - N\FFH
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AR B A

13 Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 13 #HEEFESFHABMSE

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive for the BHEZZ-—N\F=ZA=1+—H1EFE
year ended 31st March 2018 is set out below: ZEEERFETBAEZHME&EHI W
T

Executive directors BiTES

Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure HalgE Lt
(chairman) (/)

Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl BEEL L
(chief executive officer) (778 48%,)

Mr. Hung Ying Fung HRELE

Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix HEREE

Independent non-executive BIHTES

directors
Mr. Charles E. Chapman Charles E. Chapman’t 4
Dr. Leung Wai Cheung RIEFHEL
Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric HIKEEE

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B A

13

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments
(continued)
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive for the
year ended 31st March 2017 is set out below:

13

HEHRAFEFBAEMNE 2)

HE_Z—+tF=A=+—HILFER
EENTETHRABZHMEEINNAT ¢

Executive directors HITES
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure HElEE L

(chairman) (Fp) - 461 18 479
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl BeuELtL

(chief executive officer) (7TB#%) - 921 18 939
Mr. Hung Ying Fung HEZEEE - 599 18 617
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix HBERBRELE - 599 18 617
Independent non-executive BYFHTES

directors
Mr. Charles E. Chapman Charles E. Chapman4t 4 80 - - 80
Dr. Leung Wai Cheung REFEL 120 - - 120
Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric kB RAE 80 - - 80

280 2,580 72 2,932

Note:

None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the year
(2017: Nil). No incentive payment for joining the Group or compensation for loss of
office was paid or payable to any director during the year (2017: Nil).

B -

TR BERESHELAREREEAHES(=F
—tF 8 FR - HEESNKENTFENES
FIE - ERBIMAREER 2 @B E (=
T—tFE)-

BERAEEERAA - —B—N\FFR
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AR B A

13 Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 13 #FFERFEITHABME &)

(continued)

Five highest paid individuals R -T-F JNSR

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the FR AEEREAREFALTRE—F
Group for the year include one (2017: three) executive directors —E—LEFZR)WTEF  BEZ
whose emoluments are set out above. Details of the remuneration MleHR EX g THBA(ZT—+HF -
for the year of the remaining four (2017: two) highest paid ME)IEARNRERNIEEZETRAE
employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of the ZEREFEEZFNFHHFBLOT

Company are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind %% - 285 K EMEYEF]
Employer’s contributions to defined TR 8 2 B EHK
contribution scheme

The emoluments of each of these highest paid individuals whose FWNTFUATEHEE z&ZSHATZHE
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: B

Nil to HK$1,000,000 = %1,000,000%5 70
During the year, no emoluments were paid to the above individual FR - WERLERATEZAMESIESR
as inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation S| S AN A SR N A AN & B I 2 B2 3k
for loss of office (2017: Nil). ERBBEE (T —tF &) -
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14 ¥ - W Lkt

14 Property, Plant and Equipment

At 31st March 2016 RZE-5E

Zh=1-8
Cost or valuation RAESEE - 10947 28013 20,154 2,755 61,669
Accumulated depreciation 2iE - - (22538) (16,630) (1,759) (40.927)
Net book amount EHFE - 10947 h475 3524 9% 20942
Year ended 31st March 2017 BE-E-tf

ZR=t-ALEE
Opening net book amount ENEEEE - 10,947 5475 352 9% 0,342
Exchange differences EREE - [311) 1 U 4 236)
Additions KB 2015 - 2147 767 - 4979
Deficit on revaluation EftE4 - (344) - - - (344)
Disposals e - - - () - ()
Depreciation it - (213 (5512) (658) (424) (6.807)
Closing net book amount FREEEE 2015 10,079 21 3644 612 18,461
At 31st March 2017 WoB-t&

Zh=t-8
Cost or valuation AAESEE 2015 10,079 30,089 20,566 1626 65,375
Accumulated depreciation 2itiE - - (27978) (16,922) (2014) (46,914)
Net hook amount SEFE 2015 10,079 Al 3644 612 18,461
Year ended 31st March 2018 BEZ-E-N\E

ZR=t-ALEE
Opening net book amount ENETEE 2015 10,079 211 3644 612 18,461
Exchange differences EREE 14 734 0 09 3 1,074
Additions AE - - 1374 697 115 2186
Deficit on revaluation EftE4 - 100) - - - (100
Disposals = - - - (4] - (4
Depreciation b - (250) (3,455 122) (273) (4.700)
Closing net book amount ELEMFE 2209 10,463 5 3664 489 16317
At 31st March 2018 RZB-NE

=R=1-A
Cost or valuation RAESGE 219 10463 U5 20,688 2550 60441
Accumulated depreciation 2iiE - - (24,459) (17,004) (2,061) (43,524)
Net book amount KEFE 2209 10,463 i 3684 189 16,317

BERAEEERAA - —B—N\FFR
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AR B A

14 Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31st March 2018 and 2017
of the above assets is as follows:

2018

At cost
At valuation it

2017

14

10,463

10,463

ik ~ Wi Bt i o)
LREER T NEFR-_F—LF=
A=t—RZRAERMEESTWT :

—EB-N\F

24,51 20,688 2550

24,511 20,688

At cost ] 2015 - 30,089 20,566 2626 5,29
At valuation E - 10,079 - - - 10,079
2015 10079 30,089 20,566 2626 66,375

The leasehold properties are located outside Hong Kong and held
under a long-term lease.

At 31st March 2018, had the leasehold properties of the Group
been carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation, the
carrying values would have been approximately HK$4,865,000
(2017: HK$4,987,000).

At 31st March 2018, leasehold properties with an aggregate
net book amount of approximately HK$10,463,000 (2017:
HK$10,079,000) have been pledged to secure certain banking
facilities granted by a bank to a subsidiary amounting to
approximately HK$4,247,000 (2017: HK$4,910,000) (Note 21).
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A A B

AT

14

(a)

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
The fair value of the Group's leasehold properties at 31st March
2018 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out
on that date by an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected with the Group. The independent valuer is a member of
Singapore Institute of Surveyors and Valuers, and has appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. The valuations were arrived at
by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties.

The Group's policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out
of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Valuation basis

Valuation processes

The Group obtains independent valuations for its leasehold
properties at least annually. In the current year, the valuations are
performed by an independent firm of professional valuer. At the
end of each reporting period, the directors update their assessment
of the fair value of each leasehold property, taking into account
the most recent independent valuations. The directors review
the valuations performed by an independent valuer for financial
reporting purposes. Discussions of valuation processes and results
are held between the directors and valuer at least annually, in line
with the Group’s annual report date.

14

(a)

L E Y &L E )
AEBREMER - N\E=F
=+-AZATFEDREEAEETE
BECBUABRELGEEMNZ AR
T2 ETEE o B ik 8 A
MEMREETHee s  E6MHMm
By R GES EAEEE AR RS
T8 BEREENC2EREYERS
B TR BB EL -

AEE s BRERSI BEBEZ FHNKIE
MECBREZAERRIFESFRZEA
HEH -

FRN - F—HK FIARE=HRZEL
B -

48 5 A

G EER

AEERIBF-AREBENESK
BIUfhE RAFE  FRMGERBL
BEXMEMTET RIERSHEE
5B EFeEMRFHZEHENE
AFEZHE  BEFEARROZE
MiEE  EFRHEHMBUGEMET G
B WEFELBMBAE - EFEEER
ROBF-REEAKEFHA RN ®
HERFRER -

BREKEERQE - - N\FFH
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A T A B B

14

(a)

(b)

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
Valuation basis (continued)

Valuation processes (continued)

At each financial year end the directors:

(i) Verify all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

(ii) Assess leasehold properties valuations movements when
compared to prior year valuation report; and

(i) Hold discussions with the independent valuer.

Valuation techniques
The fair value of the leasehold properties of the Group held for own
use as at 31st March 2018 are classified as Level 2 valuations.

The fair value of leasehold properties for own use is determined
using market comparison approach by reference to recent sales
price and rental of comparable properties on a price per square
feet basis using market data which is publicly available.

The Group leases machinery under non-cancellable finance lease
agreements. The lease term is 5 years, and ownership of the assets
lie within the Group.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2018

14

(a)

(b)

L E Y &L 1))
WA ()
HERR ()
NEBRREER 5 -

(i) LREBUGHERSTHOAEEXN
BWAE

) RS R
WMELLE N2 &8 &

(i) BB EERMETTR

1EEH %
R-ZE—NE=ZF=+—8 ~"&E=E#
EERZHRENEZ A FERIEASE
A EE

FIFERZHEEMEZRAFETER™T
BHEOAEE  HERAARREGZM
SRR YRB2EAHRLEENEEETF
TREBRELEFEZINEERAS -

AEBREIIHEREHEGEHE
ez - HEIRHLF  AREEZHEER
BAREKEMEA -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B A

15

Subsidiaries

Details of the subsidiaries as at 31st March 2018, all of which are
held indirectly by the Company (except for Mobicon (BVI) Limited
which is held directly by the Company), are as follows:

A Plus Computer Holdings
Limited

APlus 2 Computer Limited
REFERERAA

APower Holdings Limited
REREERRAT

AESI (HK) Limited
K-RE(EE)
N

Langa Holdings (Propristary)

Limited

Mantech Electronics
(Proprigtary Limited

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company

ABRAES  BRAT

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&% RO

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&% RO

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&% BRAH

Republic of South Africa,
limited liability company

BIEANE  BRAF

Republic of South Africa,
limited liability company

BHELAE - BRATF

Investment holding in Hong Kong

RERETREER

Trading and distribution of computer
products and mobile accessories

in Hong Kong
REBETERERR
FRENEEENH

Trading and distribution of computer
products, comestic products and

mobile accessories
in Hong Kong

REBETEHER (HAR

FREHEEERN B

Provision of information technology

services in Hong Kong

REBREEARERS

Investment holding in South Africa

REETREARR

Trading and distribution of electronic
parts, components and equipment

in South Africa

REJEETETEN TR

BEEEENH

RS I8 2 )
R-_ZE—NF=ZA=+—8 HBEA
A& B A A A E# 5 A (M Mobicon (BVI)
LimitedBh o) » AR AR EEFE) © &F
BT -

Ordinary USD800,000
LER800,000E T

Ordinary HK$1,000
LER 0008 T

Ordinary HK$500,000
LRR5000005 7T

Ordinary HK$1,000
TER100ET

Ordinary South African Rand
("ZAR") 100
LRRI0EFES

Ordinary ZAR 100
ERRI0EHRE

BERAEEERLR - —B-N\FFER

100%

100%

60%

100%

61%

61%

100%

100%

60%

100%

51%

51%
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15 Subsidiaries (continued) 15 MWBAWE 2

Maxfair Distribution Limited ~ Hong Kong, Trading and distribution of computer  Ordinary HK$100, 100% 100%
ELRBRAF limited liability company products and mobile accessories non-voting deferred shares
5 BRAF in Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 Note (i)
RERETEREDR LERI00ET
FREHEERDH EREEELR

1,000,000 7 B ££1i))

MBM Properties (Proprietary] ~ Republic of South Africa, Trading and distribution of electronic  Ordinary ZAR 100 61% 51%
Limited (formerly known as limited liability company parts, components and equipment  Z 1007 SER S
AP Electronics (Proprietary) — BSERLME - ERAF in South Africa
Limited REFETSTEN  THR

(BTTRAP Hlectronics BREEENHS

(Proprietary) Limited)

MCU Power Limited Hong Kong, Trading and distribution of electronic  Ordinary HK$1,000,000 100% 100%
REHERAT limited liability company parts, components and equipment X &R1,000,000% 7T
% BRAR in Hong Kong
REBETETRE  THR
BREEENH
Milliard Devices Limited Hong Kong, Trading and distribution of electronic ~ Ordinary HK$1,000,000 10% 0%
ZERTHBERAR limited liability company parts, components and equipment < &%1,000,000/3 7T
&% BRAR inHong Kong
REBETETRE  THR
BREEENH
Mobicon (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in Hong Kong Ordinary USD10,000 100% 100%
limited liabilty company REBENRELR ERRI0,00%TT

ABRLARS  ARAT
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A B A

bt J& Al (42)

15 Subsidiaries (continued) 15

Mabicon (Taiwan) Limited

REERARNARAR

Mobicon Agent Limited
ERBIREERAR

Mobicon Electronic Trading
(Shenzhen) Limited
[Note (ii)

ERBIETER (M)
BRRR(MEH)

Mobicon Holdings Limited
ERBIETEEERAR)

Mabicon International Limited

Mobicon Malaysia Limited

Republic of China,
limited liability company

RERE BRLA

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&% ARAH

PRC, wholly-owned
foreign enterprise

TE - HEEELE

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&% ARAH

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company

RBRAES  BRAW

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company

RERLES  BRAT

Trading and distribution of electronic
parts, components and equipment
in Taiwan

RABETETER  THE
BEEEENH

Trading and distribution of electronic
parts, components and equipment
in Hong Kong

REBETETER  THR
BEEEENH

Trading and distribution of electronic
parts, components and equipment
in the PRC

RPEETETEN  THE
BEEEENH

Trading and distribution of electronic
parts, components and equipment
in Hong Kong

REBETETER  THR
BEEEENH

Investment holding in Hong Kong

RERETREER

Investment holding in Hong Kong

REBETRERR

Ordinary New Taiwan dollar
5,000,000
LER5.00000057 4

Ordinary HK$10,000
LER10,0005 T

Registered capital
HK$2,000,000
# 1 E A52,000,0007 7T

Ordinary HK$10
LaR0ET

Ordinary USD100

ERRI00ET

Ordinary USD1
LRRIET

BERAEEERLR - —B-N\FFER

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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15 Subsidiaries (continued) 15 MWBAWE 2

Mobicon-Mantech Holdings British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in Hong Kong Ordinary USD1,000 61% 51%
Limited limited liabilty company REBEITRARR LHRI000ET
RERNES ARAT
Mobicon-Remote Electronic ~ Republic of Singapore, Trading and distribution of electronic ~ Ordinary Singaporean 100% 100%
Pte Ltd. limited liability company parts, components and equipment dollar 300,000
TIRERE BRAA in Singapore ERE300,0008 Mtk T
RATIEETETRS
ThRESEEENH
Mobicon-Remote Electronic ~ Malaysia, Trading and distribution of electronic  Ordinary Malaysian 95% 95%
Sdn. Bhd. limited liability company parts, components and equipment Ringgit 1,000,000
ERAD  BRAF in Malaysia T@IR1,000,000
RERBTETEFEN SREEHEH
ThRESEEENH
Partners 2 Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in Hong Kong Ordinary USD100 100% 100%
limited iability company ~ REEETREARR LERI0ET

RERLES  BRAT

Videocom Technology Hong Kong, Trading cosmetic Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%
(HK] Limited limited liability company products in Hong Kong LRERIET
WEL(ER)BRRE  BE ARAF RERETIARER
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15

Subsidiaries (continued)
Notes:

(i) The non-voting deferred shares are not owned by the Group. The shares
have no voting rights, are not entitled to dividend, and are not entitled to
any distributions upon winding up unless a sum of HK$10 billion had been
distributed to the holders of ordinary shares.

(ii) The subsidiary has a financial year-end date falling on 31st December
in accordance with the local statutory requirements, which is not
coterminous with the Group. The consolidated financial statements of the
Group were prepared based on the financial statements of the subsidiary
for the twelve months ended 31st March 2018.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any time
during the year ended 31st March 2018 (2017: Nil).

Material non-controlling interest

The total non-controlling interest for the year is approximately
HK$26,043,000, of which approximately HK$23,348,000 is
for Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
("Mobicon-Mantech Group”). The non-controlling interest in
respect of the other subsidiary is not material.

Summarized financial information on the subsidiary with
material non-controlling interest
Set out below are the summarized financial information for the
subsidiary, Mobicon-Mantech Group that has a non-controlling
interest that is material to the Group.

Summarized statement of financial position

Current

mE

15

bt J& Al (42)

PEE

(i) ERZERELERNIEAAEERES - %
ERmHITERTRE  TEEZFRS B
REBREEZAERIR - BME DR
10,000,000,0007%8 7T T & @AE B A BIBRSN ©

(ii) RIBEHIRERTE @ %M BRARZHK
FEHEBRT-ZA=+—H  #K%
B A— AEBEZEAPBHRERT
BEZMBRARABE_ZT-—NF=A
=t —HIE AR ZHMBRERAE -

EMBARARBE _Z-—NF=A
=+ —HIEFERAERERBREEMND
BIOIZEEER(CE—LF  8|) -

BRI IR AR

NG [E 2 FEVE AR A 25 48 58 /5 49 26,043,000
P& JT - H AP #923,348,000 5 T 5B R
Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited & £ Fft /&
2 &1 ([Mobicon-Mantech$£ &) |) o E i B
NRAZFERERLTERK o

EEEAHZREZZHBLATAZHFE
LA T & 2t Bff /8 /2 B]Mobicon-Mantech 55 [& 2
B 75 E R ZE - Mobicon-Mantech®2E B &
HAEBEMESBEN 2 TR iER -

HBERRRBE

Assets BE 63,756 54,782
Liabilities =L (A L)) (15,707)
Total current net assets TEEE R EEE 56,596

BERAEEERAT - - \FFR
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15 Subsidiaries (continued)
Material non-controlling interests (continued)
Summarized financial information on the subsidiary with
material non-controlling interest (continued)
Summarized statement of financial position (continued)

15

Pt & 2> W )

TR IR PR HE 25 (42
AEBAHZRER B LT
ERIHE ()

BERREE(F)

Non-current
Assets
Liabilities

SR
4%
i

Total non-current net assets

FEMENE EFE M

3,105

Net assets

BEEFE

59,701

Summarized statement of comprehensive income

Revenue

PEHR B R HE

77,919

Profit before income tax

B FS MR A

17,057
(4,783)

12,274
5,527

17,801

Income tax expense FriSBifx

Profit for the year F N5 )

Other comprehensive income HAh 2 EUA

Total comprehensive income for the year FR2EB AL

Total comprehensive income allocated to RN 22 g
non-controlling interests ZER AL

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

ER TR s 2 LS
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15

Subsidiaries (continued)

Material non-controlling interests (continued)
Summarized financial information on the subsidiary with
material non-controlling interests (continued)

Summarized statement of cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities REEBELECRERE
Cash generated from operations BEEECRSE
Overseas income tax paid EREINTIEH

Pt & 2> W )

TR IR PR MERS (42)
AEEAHZRERZWE AT 2%
ERIHE ()

HehBEME

14,135 20,293
(3,549) (6,743)

Net cash generated from operating activities

REEBELEZREFR

10,586 13,550

Net cash used in investing activities BETSBAZREFE (3,906) (2,075)
Net cash used in financing activities MEEHEACIESFEE (5,955) (12,233)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RE&ERBEZEYEINFEE 725
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning EV7ESRAESEEY

of the year 3,464
Exchange losses on cash and bank balances e RIBTHEGZENEE 430
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year ~ FRZIBE MRS 4,619

The information above is the amount before inter-company
eliminations.

Transaction with non-controlling interests

On 8th December 2017, the Group acquired an additional 10%
of equity interests in Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited for
a purchase consideration of approximately HK$6,879,000. The
carrying amount of non-controlling interests in Mobicon-Mantech
Holdings Limited on the date of acquisition was approximately
HK$4,694,000. The Group recognized a decrease in non-controlling
interests of approximately HK$4,694,000 and a decrease in
equity attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$2,185,000.

EREMRRELEBARREEHF
ZEH -

BRI 2 R 5
R-_ZE—+tF+-ANB  AEHK
8% Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited & #b
10% A% AN 25 - B8 B X {8 49 46,879,000
BT o PAUEE B H8 - 5 Mobicon-Mantech
Holdings Limited 2 1 AR #E 2 2 BREE 40
A4,694,00075 7T o A BRI S
R #94,694,00078 T AR B HER A BN
TR A #92,185,00078 7T ©

BREKEERQE - - N\FFH
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16 Interests in Associates
Disposal of associates
During the year ended 31st March 2017, the Group entered into
a sale and purchase agreement with Mr. Yeung Wang Sang, a
shareholder of Create Tech to dispose of its entire 30% interests
in Create Tech at a consideration of HK$6,720,000 which will be
settled by rendering of maintenance services.

During the year ended 31st March 2017, the Group disposed of its
entire 49% equity interest in Mobicon Electronic Supplies Co., Ltd.
upon deregistration.

Gain on disposal of associates approximately HK$6,667,000 had
been recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for
the year ended 31st March 2017.

17 Inventories

Electronic parts, components and equipment

16

17

BFEMN - i RiES

Computer products and mobile accessories BN E T R F R

Cosmetic products b

W W) 2 HE A

&2 2w
REBEE-_Z—+tF=-A=+—BL*F
& - A& B B AR 2 B 3 Yeung Wang
Sangft 4RI B B - HEHRIAIR
22 E30%#m - & /6,720,0008 7T
B BREEERERE 2 A XM -

REBEE_ZT—tF=A=+—HILF
[ 7K £ [ 7 Mobicon Electronic Supplies
Co., Ltd BEEME - HEERZAFZ
2 ERA9% AR A HERS ©

S B & Q| PT1S & 4) /56,667,000
T ERBE_Z—tF=A=+—8
IEFEZRABERER -

S

139,711 133,052
11,352 16,777
22,618 29,719

173,681 179,548
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18

Trade Receivables

The Group normally grants to its customers credit periods for
sales of goods ranging from 7 to 90 days. The following is an aged
analysis of trade receivables, net of allowance for doubtful debts,
presented based on due dates:

0 to 60 days TE60H
61 to 120 days 612120H
121 to 180 days 1212180H
181 to 365 days 1812365H

JRE W B 5 Bk
AEE—RATERFPZEEREEHA
TRAENBENE - REBAFEZY 2R
WE ZERFR(EMNBRRIREE) REDT
T

46,109

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
fair values of trade receivables. There is no concentration of credit
risk with respect to trade receivables as the Group has a large
number of customers. The Group does not hold any collateral as
security in respect of its trade receivables.

As at 31st March 2018, trade receivables of approximately
HK$23,334,000 (2017: HK$17,812,000) were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for
whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of
these trade receivables is as follows:

Up to 60 days % H60H
61 to 120 days 61Z2120H

121 to 180 days 1212180 H
181 to 365 days 1812365H

RBEEHMMARZEREERR AR
WEBERAFE - ARAEEER
BEARZ  WEREZIERFTELES
hEERR - AKBEYEREEREKES
RAREE TERRERER -

R-ZE—NFE=ZA=+—H ' 423,334,000
BEIT(ZZ—+4F ¢ 17,812,000/ 1) 7 FEIY
ZESRFEARBTERE ZZRKE
5 BR BT BN M KB SR B S B B
NRFBER - ZERNE ZER KRS
Hraar

20,922
2,048
212
152

23,334

As at 31st March 2018 and 2017, none of trade receivables has
been assigned to a bank with recourse as collateral under factoring
arrangement (Note 21).

RZE-NEFEERZZET—+tF=A=+—
H WEEKREZERERERST
EETIRITIEAERR U BERE
(P5E21) ©

BERAEEERLR - —B-N\FFER
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18 Trade Receivables (continued)

As at 31st March 2018, trade receivables of approximately
HK$432,000 (2017: HK$243,000) were impaired. The amount of
the provision was approximately HK$470,000 as at 31st March
2018 (2017: HK$597,000). The individually impaired receivables
mainly relate to a few customers, which are in unexpected difficult
economic situations. The average age of these receivables is over
180 days (2017: over 180 days).

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

At beginning of the year F9)

18

JE W B 5 Rk (4)

N-TB—-NE=A=+—H8 EKEH
BRI %7432,0008 70 (ZZ —+4F : 243,000
BTIERE R NF=A=+—
B2z BESEN /L0008 T(ZE—+
£ : 597,000 7T) © ERIE HERRE S E
WERREE P R D EHEE EETER MK
REErEF - BEBKWERZ FHER
A180A A E(ZZF—+%F : 180HLAE) ©

KRB ZERFRERBZEENT

Receivables written off as uncollectible i EE A A Uk (8] 2 PR IR
Provision for impairment of trade receivables  FEURE 5 BR TR (B
Reversal of provision of trade receivables FEWE B BRI B
Exchange differences M R

At end of the year Fx
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19 Cash and Bank Balances 19  Bi& M eRiT &Lk

Cash at bank and in hand RITRFHERES

Cash and bank balances of the Group include an amount RNEE 2 & RIRTT 4 828 3E 49945,000
of approximately HK$945,000 (2017: HK$1,133,000) was BIL(ZZF—+H4F 11,133,000/ 7T) AAR
denominated in Renminbi and kept in Mainland China. The OERFERIRP B AN 2 A - i #
conversion of these Renminbi denominated balances into foreign ZEANREERRINERIEZEEIE
currencies and the remittance of these funds out of Mainland AR B A - 285 AR B R 2 6 B S0 B
China is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange B BB RERATIRBR -
control promulgated by the PRC government.

20 Trade Payables 20 JEAHE 5 MR
The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: ER B SRFERRITIAT

0 to 60 days T ZE60H 24,419 30,723
61 to 120 days 612120H 250
121 to 180 days 12121808 445
181 to 365 days 18123658 252

25,366

BERAEEERAT - - \FFR
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21 Short-Term Bank Loans 21 ST EX
All short-term bank loans are due within one year and denominated FIERBBRTEREIR —FRE R
in the following currencies: THEEFIE :

Hong Kong dollar BT

US dollar E7T

Singapore dollar Frnsg o
The effective interest rates of the short-term bank loans at the NGB RHRITERZERFE
reporting date range from approximately 2.68% to 4.2% (2017: N F#268%242%( ZF—+E4F : 2.44%
2.44% to 3.48%). £3.48%) °
The Group's banking facilities are secured by the leasehold REBMZRTREUAEE  HEYE
properties of the Group (Note 14). (BEE14) fEHE IR ©
At 31st March 2018, the Group had unutilized facilities of RZE—N\F=ZA=+—H8 ' AEBX
approximately HK$60,657,000 (2017: HK$75,911,000). &) Bl & 4960,657,0008 T ( ZF — 4 -

75,911,000/ 7T) ©
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22 Finance Lease Liabilities 22 BhEMEAE

Amounts payable under finance BEMEET
leases: FERTRRIE -

Within one year —FR

In more than one year and not more —4F&ERER
than five years

Less: Future finance charges W RRIBE R

Present value of Iease liabilities HEaE RE

Less: Amount due for settlement & : + =18 A%/
within 12 months (shown under B2\ (ERE

current liabilities) BETE)

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its fixture and furniture AREBEZHRRRERELEEERET
under finance leases. The lease term is 5 years. At 31st March HEREM - HEAHSE - RZT— N\
2018, the effective borrowing rate was 7.74% (2017: 7.74%). F=ZA=+—0 BEBREEFNEXARTT4%
Interest rates are fixed at the contract date. The lease is on a ZE—EF 774%) o FIERELH B
fixed repayment basis and no arrangement has been entered into EE HERETENR  BUMEITUE
for contingent rental payments. At the end of the lease term, MRS RETHE - RBEEHR - &K
the Group has the option to purchase the fixture and furniture at SENEERZEERBEAHEEER
nominal prices. R o

All finance lease obligations are denominated in SGD. FrEREMRES EH AN ITEHE -

BERAEEERAT - - \FFR
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23 Share Capital

23

200,000 200,000

Authorized: JETE ¢
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares SREMEIE T

of HK$0.10 each 37 f%.2,000,000,0004%
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
200,000,000 ordinary shares FREEI0E LY

of HK$0.10 each 38 %200,000,0007%

24 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 24

Cash Flows

Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash (used in)/

generated from operations:

(Loss)/profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
— Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
— Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
— Interest income
— Interest expense
— Provision for impairment of trade
receivables
— Reversal of provision for impairment of
trade receivables
— Gain on disposal of associates

BrPrSELRT (B51R), i A
ATNIEE Z %
W% BEK
REIE
—HEME - BER
* iz W
—FIBHA
—FBRHAX
—RBURESERZ
RERE
—EWE SERFRE
BEEm
—hEBE ARz W

Changes in working capital: LiEEEE
— Inventories -FE
— Trade receivables —FEWE HEER
— Other receivables and deposits —HibEWHIBERIZS
— Trade payables —ERBSER
— Other payables and accruals — E A R RUE &
FEETEA
Net cash (used in)/generated from operations &% (FA) EEY
ReF5E

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2018

fi A Bl i B R W RE

BAEHAENREEEB(MA) &
HEZBREFRHK

10,722
(2,683)
(1,749)
(6,855)

(11,556)

(10,996)
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24

Notes to the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows (continued)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group's consolidated cash flow statement as cash flows from
financing activities

24

HAEBemEERmE e
RMEEYMELEZBEZHEE

TREIAEEAREETDELECLAE
2HHAE EERASRIFReEH -7
BELTHEEZABBERIBRALE

HReReRnEeRNDERAREEY 2
ﬁﬁ%mi°

At 1st April 2017 RZZE—+FMA—H 65 80,200 80,265
Proceeds from new borrowings MR EAEEE - 587,838 587,838
Repayment of borrowings BELE - (575,670) (575,670)
Repayment of finance lease liabilities ~— HE@MEAEEE (14) - (14)
Exchange adjustments [E 5 A 6 222 228
At 31st March 2018 R=—B-NF=A=+—H 57 92,590 92,647

BERAEEERAA - —B—N\FFR
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25 Commitments 25
Operating lease commitments — where the Group is
the lessee
As at 31st March 2018, the Group had future aggregate minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect
of rented premises as follows:

No later than one year —FK
Later than one year and no later than five years —E&ERER

S
A0 L 7 — A I A AR R

RZBE—-NE=A=+—0  x&EEm
HEMEZTARHESCEHERBEE
NHREREMZEEOT

24,857
9,515

34,372

Operating lease payments represent rentals payables by the Group
for certain of its retail outlets, office and warehouses. Leases
are negotiated and rentals are fixed for terms ranging from 1 to 3
years.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2018
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26 Related Party Transactions 26
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the
Group had the following significant related party transactions

68 Wk N\ 32 5
B S B R R L AR E S
AEERFNEUTEABBALRS |

during the year:

(a) Particulars of significant transactions between the Group and
related parties are summarized below:

2R E (ii)
Management fee received from B U EY — FE B A R
an associate Z2ERS (i)
Maintenance fee paid to an associate B {4 —REE& A 7
THEEE (iv)
Purchases from an associate il l/NCIE (iii)
Sales to an associate HE T —RHEE AR (i)
Rentals paid/payable to M-Bar Limited B2 3+, f& % {M-Bar
Limited 2 F & (v).(xi)
Rentals paid/payable to UGD Property B 31,/ sz ~TUGD
(Proprietary) Limited ("UGD Property”)  Property (Proprietary)
Limited ([UGD
Property ) 2 #& (vi).(xii)
Sales to PC Supply Limited and its HETEBRER
subsidiaries (“PC Supply Group”) NalRENBERAR
([EERER]) (vii),(xii)
Purchases from PC Supply Group WEBPEEFE (vii),{xii)
Commission income received from EUENE B E
PC Supply Group RS HA (viii)
Services fee paid to PC Supply Group B X & ER/EE
5T (ix)
Rental fee received from PC EEE ERERE
Supply Group ik (x)
Consultancy fee paid to RYM B 3 fFRYM Innovation Ltd.
Innovation Ltd. ZERE (xiii)

Services fee received from an associate & UgEY— RSB & A 5]

(a)

AEBEBERATETZIEARSFIE
st

i

R

BREKEERQE - - N\FFH

129



130

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A T A B B

26 Related Party Transactions (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

During the year ended 31st March 2017, management fee was received
from an associate, Create Tech Software Systems Limited (“Create Tech”)
at a fixed monthly rate of HK$17,000 per month for use and lease of
facilities of the Group. The Group disposed of its associate’s interest in
July 2016 for a consideration of HK$6,720,000.

During the year ended 31st March 2017, services fee received from an
associate, Create Tech was conducted in the normal course of business
at terms as agreed between the contracting parties for providing online-
marketing related services.

During the year ended 31st March 2017, sales to and purchases from an
associate, Create Tech were conducted in the normal course of business at
terms as agreed between the contracting parties.

During the year ended 31st March 2017, maintenance fee was paid to an
associate, Create Tech at terms as agreed between the contracting parties
for providing maintenance of the accounting system.

M-Bar Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mobicon Electronic
Supplies Company Limited, a company beneficially owned by Dr. Hung Kim
Fung, Measure (30%), Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl (30%), Mr. Hung Ying Fung
(20%) and Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix (20%), directors and substantial
shareholders of the Company. The lease agreements with M-Bar Limited
were entered into at terms agreed between the contracting parties.

UGD Property and Tiger Moth are companies wholly-owned by Mr. Manuel
Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho, a director of the Langa Holdings (Proprietary)
Limited, Mantech Electronics (Proprietary) Limited, MBM Properties
(Proprietary) Limited (formerly known as AP Electronics (Proprietary)
Limited, Mobicon International Limited and Mobicon-Mantech Holdings
Limited and owns 49% interest in Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited. The
lease agreements with UGD Property and Tiger Moth were entered into
at terms agreed between the contracting parties. Mr. Manuel Arnaldo de
Sousa Moutinho resigned from directorship of the Company with effect
from 1st April 2016.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2018

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

BN L2 5 2)

FEE

%

RBEE-_TE—tHE=ZA=+—ALHF
B REBEARFEAREFERA R
(TFER ) 2 EBE T HAAAEER
MU ElZ EREE AT A17,00087T ° A
SEER-_T—A"FLALEEREE
NREIZ R - K18736,720,0007 7T °

RBE-_T-—LtF=A=+—HIHF
B REBERRFAIR 2 RBETIR

—REVIBIZP IR A A L2 HARR
BMIRAT & TT W Z ARFAETT

a3

2 BEEN R AIRHETT 2 E kIR
BRIV —REBBREFIRITNET
BT Z ARFRAETT

RBEE-Z—+tF=A=+—-HLHF
B EXNBERRMARZHERD
RANE T HEZ GRS RB GRS
HERRIS TS -

M-Bar Limited BB RAIEFHR AR 22
BEWBAR - BRAIEFHBR AR AL
ARIEEFEZRE LS EEL(30%)
S EEZ 1 (30%) « HEEE 4 (20%) R 45
BRI A(20%)E = A © BLM-Bar Limited
PN 2 HERZE RTINS HHEZIE

FREIAL

UGD Property % Tiger Moth ¥J /& Manuel
Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinhose 4= 2B A 2
/A@) * Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho %&
£ /& Langa Holdings (Proprietary) Limited -
Mantech Electronics (Proprietary) Limited
MBM Properties (Proprietary) Limited ( A &
AP Electronics (Proprietary) Limited) ~ Mobicon
International Limited 52 Mobicon-Mantech
Holdings Limited & % - I # /& Mobicon-
Mantech Holdings Limited 49% # 2§ o 2
UGD Property N Tiger Mothz] 32 2 FH & 3%
THIRET K& 75 1 7€ ZAKFKET 3L © Manuel
Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho%E 4 2 BHEAR A
RIEERG Y -_FT—"FHA—H
RBAERK ©
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26 Related Party Transactions (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi

(xii)

(xiii)

PC Supply Limited is owned as to 99.99% and 0.01% by A Plus Computer
Shop Limited (“A Plus”) and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl respectively. A Plus is
beneficially owned by Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure (30%), Ms. Yeung Man
Yi, Beryl (30%), Mr. Hung Ying Fung (20%) and Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung,
Allix (20%), directors and substantial shareholders of the Company. Sales
to and purchases from PC Supply Group were conducted in the normal
course of business at terms as agreed between the contracting parties.

Commission income received from Clover Display Limited was conducted in
the normal course of business at terms as agreed between the contracting
parties.

Services fee paid to PC Supply Group were conducted in the normal course
of business at terms as agreed between the contracting parties.

Rental fee received from PC Supply Group was conducted in the normal
course of business at terms as agreed between the contracting parties.

During the years ended 31st March 2018 and 2017, these transactions
constituted continuing connected transactions as defined in the Listing
Rules.

During the year ended 31st March 2017, these transactions constituted
continuing connected transactions as defined in the Listing Rules.

RYM Innovation Ltd. (“RYM") is owned as to 50% by Mr. Hung Lok Tin.
Mr. Hung Lok Tin is the son of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure, a director of
Mobicon Group Limited. Consultancy fee paid to RYM was conducted in
the normal course of business at terms as agreed between the contracting
parties.

BN L2 5 )

PEE

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(&)

BEPBRARNDHAEBBEKEER

TU%%@WED&%m%ﬁiﬁﬁ
99.99% % 0.01% 2z - BEBMIEHAR
RIEEHREZREERZHEL(30%) - 15
BUE LT (30%) + HE T E 5 A (20%) [ 15 B
BREEEQ%ERSESR - BEBREEE
TZHERRBR IR —REKBE
FIRET RIS 5 e Z AGRGEAT ©

2 YgER Clover Display Limited 2 /84 W A Ty
R—REBBRPIRTNSHHBEZ G
FGEAT ©

EXNEETREEZRBETIR —RE
i%a@%im&am%mmzmxsg
EUBMBEEREE ZHEE TN —RE
BB ILRT K8 T3 7€ 2 IRFOETT

RBE-_Z-N\FR-_ZF—tF=A
=t+t—HLFE- E%#x%%ﬁiiﬁﬁ
BT SE 2 SR R

RBE-F-—tF=A=+-AL%
B RERHER ETRUMRE S
ERERS -

RYM Innovation Ltd. ([ RYM J)ER i £4K 5 A&
A% - RERELEAEENER
BERAFREZHRGEH LR T - BX
RYMZ BB B T — R ES B IZET
K& B IE 2 AGFRHETT ©

BREKEERQE - - N\FFH

131



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B A

26 Related Party Transactions (continued)

(b) Included in other receivables of the Group as at 31st March 2018
were rental deposits paid to M-Bar Limited of approximately
HK$738,000 (2017: HK$738,000).

(c) Included in other payables and accruals of the Group were
amounts due to minority shareholders of certain subsidiaries of
approximately HK$Nil (2017: HK$1,779,000). The amounts are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

(d) Key management compensation

Short-term employee benefits EEEE BT
Post-employment benefits B R A

(b)

(c)

(d)

BN LR 5 e
R-ZZE-N\E=A=+—0  K&EEH
b & Ug FX T8 B 75 B 2 15 M-Bar Limited 2
EEIZE473800F T (T —+H4F :
738,000/ 7T ) ©

AEEEMENZIBERETERABDIERE
NETHWBARDHEREFRIBELHZTET
(ZZ—+4F :1,779,000/57T) - BEFA
BEET - B RAREREE -

EEEIE A B RN

2,580

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in Note 13 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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27 Statement of Financial Position of the

(a)

Company and Movement of Reserves of the

Company
As at 31st March 2018

Statement of financial position of the Company

27 A
W) Z fifi i 52 B

B_ZF—-NE=HA=+—H
(a)  AREZRIFHMIE

Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AT ZIRE 100,640
100,640
Current assets RBEE
Amount due from a subsidiary R — R b B A Bl EIE 12,214
Cash and bank balances WE MIRITHER 85
12,299
Total assets EEHE 112,939
Current liabilities b =R
Other payables and accruals Hofth & A<t 0B R B B 22
22
Net current assets REEEEE 12,277
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERREBERE 112,917
Net assets BESE 112,917
Capital and reserves attributable to EAATEREBEEA
the equity holders of the Company iR RA R
Share capital [N 20,000
Reserves & 92,917
Total equity RSB 112,917

The statement of financial position of the Company were approved
and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 26th June

2018 and signed on its behalf by:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B A

27 Statement of Financial Position of the 27 AA TR ZMBRNELALD

Company and Movement of Reserves of the w2 il 52 W) )

Company (continued)

As at 31st March 2018 (continued) R-Z-NE=HA=1T—H#E)
(b))  Movement of reserves of the Company (b) AR A2 FEEZE

Balance at 1st April 2016 RZZ—RF

MUA—Hz & 16,706 67,097 1,581 85,384
Profit for the year F A% - - 11,534 11,534
Dividends BE - - (2,000) (2,000)
Balance at 31st March 2017 RZZ—+F

ZA=+—Rz&#H 16,706 67,097 11,115 94,918
Balance at 1st April 2017 RZTE—LtF

mA—H & 16,706 67,097 11,115 94,918
Loss for the year FREE - - (1) (1)
Dividends ) - - (2,000) (2,000)

Balance at 31st March 2018 R-ZE-NF

ZA=t-H
g 16,706 67,097 9,114 92,917
Representing: K&
2018 final dividend —T-N\F
RERE 1,000
Others HAth 8,114
9,114
Note: BT
Contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal value of the GABBIEADNTRARTEER Y EE - HiRE
ordinary shares issued by the Company and the net asset value of subsidiaries —EE—EmA+N\BRTEATHRBRGFE
acquired through exchanges of shares pursuant to the reorganization which took WEBATZ BESBE Y =5 -

place on 18th April 2001.
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Financial Summary

S s

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the

Group for the last five financial years is set out below:

Results

AEEREREMBFEZEAMEEREER
BEMEHIILT

e

Revenue Uz

Profit before income tax & P13 85 A4
Income tax expense FTSBAx

Profit for the year FRmH
Attributable to: A

Equity holders of the Company AREIERFAA
Non-controlling interests SRR RS

546,672

(5,929)
(5,080)

(11,009)

(17,132)
6,123

(11,009)

627,771 684,374 695,057 603,276
6,493 15,743 17,940 9,242
(5,241) (5,587) (6,159) (3.911)
1,252 10,156 11,781 5,331
(3,763) 3,766 1,789 1,013
5,015 6,390 3,992 4,318
1,252 10,156 11,781 5,331

BERAEEERAT - - \FFR
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Financial Summary

S s it

Assets and Liabilities

Property, plant and equipment mE - BERR

Interest in associates NNl

Other receivables HAbFEd A

Current assets MENEE

Total assets BEEHE

Current liabilities rEIN=YE

Net current assets RBEEFE

Total assets less current BEEABERABER
liahilities

Non-current liabilities EREAE

Net assets BEEFE

Capital and reserves FAREBREA
attributable to the equity LR AR
holders of the Company

Share capital [N

Reserves &

Non-controlling interests FERER

Total equity A

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2018

16,917

4,704
276,348

297,969

(129,776)

146,572

168,193

(43)

168,150

20,000
122,107

142,107
26,043

299 §=L i

168,150

18,461 20,942 22,673 26,351
- - 39 17

5,376 - - -
293,191 316,814 335,207 298,191
317,028 337,756 357,919 324,559
(135,855) (156,176) (176,054) (142,129)
157,336 160,638 159,153 156,062
181,173 181,580 181,865 182,430
(52) - - -
181,121 181,580 181,865 182,430
20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
138,706 143,456 145,973 144,897
158,706 163,456 165,973 164,897
22,415 18,124 15,892 17,533
181,121 181,580 181,865 182,430
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